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LOOKING TO THE FUTURE With the acquisition of 13 Southern Yellow Pine sawmiiis

in the United States, expected to close at the end of March 2007, West Fraser is set to write a new

énd exciting chapter in its history. Since the Company was founded in 1955 in Quesnel, British

Columbia, it has continued to diversify and expand its business while maintaining its commitment

' 3(0 the core values that have defined the Company’s culture: cost control in all aspects of the

business; the maintenance of efficient mills; responsibility in environmental performance; the

-maintenance of a safe workplace; and active engagement of employees in the business.

The latest U.S. acquisition will bring the vision of West Fraser’s founders, brothers Sam, Bill and

Pete Ketcham, to a new plateau. The Company that started out as a small planing mill more than

“half a century ago will be the second largest lumber producer in North America and Ovill employ

over 9,000 people at its lumber, MDF, LVL, plywood, and pqu and paper operat:ons in elght U S.

states and 2 Canadlan prownces

;
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WEST FRASER TIMBER CO.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

2006

2005

Larnings ($ milions)
Sales 3,326 3,577
EBITDA 682 447
Operating earnings 392 191
Earnings aes8 108
Cash flow from operating activities 880 30
Common Share Data (in dollars per share, except shares outstanding)
Shares outstanding (thousands)
Weighted average basic 42,751 42,731
Year-end 42,772 42,757
Eamings Per Share — Basic 9.31 2.52
— Diluted 9.23 2.49
Cash Dividends 0.56 0.56
Common shareholders’ equity 52.35 43.64
Price range
- High {2006 — April 4 and April 25; 2005 — March 16) 44.00 54.87
- Low (2006 — August 16; 2005 — November 3) 34.85 38.30
- Close 41.38 41,22
Financial Position ($ milions)
Working capital 621 370
Total assets 4,018 3,634
Long-term debt (excluding current portion) 500 624
Shareholders’ equity 2,239 1,866
Analytical Data
Current ratio 1.75 1.60
Capital expenditures and acquisitions ($ mitions) 212 224
Net debt to capitalization (%) 1.0 29.4
Return on common shareholders' equity (%) 201 5.9
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2006 2005
Lumber (MMibm)
Production 4,186 4,212
Shipments 4,275 4,190
Sales ($ millions) 1,756 2,021
Operating_earnings ($ millions) 400 206
Panels
LVL (Mch) Production 3,000 3,179
Shipments 2,710 3,134
MDF (374" MMsf) Production 288 294
Shipments 28t 290
Plywood (3/8" MMsf) Production 728 724
Shipments 721 713
Sales ($ milions) 475 511
Operating eamings ($ millions) 13 27
Puilp and Paper {MTonnes)
Linerboard and kraft paper Production 459 449
Shipments 467 458
BCTMP Production 561 552
Shipments 572 550
NBSK Production 543 581
Shipments 565 570
Newsprint Production 125 130
Shipments 123 129
Sales ($ millions) 1,005 1,045
Operating earnings {$ rillions) (6) {30)

Return on Cash Dividends
Shareholders’ Per Common
Equity (%) Share (S)
o~ e
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Throughout this Annual Repart.
reference is made to EBITDA (defined
as operating eamings plus amortizaton
of property, plant, equipment and
timber, plus restructuring charges),
which West Fraser considers to be a key
performance indicator, EBIMDA is not a
generally accepted earmings measure
and should not be considered as an
alternative to eamings or cash flows as
determined in  accordance with
Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. As there is no
standardized method of calculating
EBITDA, the Company's use of the term
may not be drectly comparable with
similarty tiled measwres used by other
COmpanies.
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THE YEAR IN PICTURES

{above) Smithers Sawmill: Gord Gunson, Woods Manager, (right) Tanner Olson,
Unscrambler Operator

(bottom left) Willlams Lake Sawmill: Brian Merrick, Safety Coordinator

(bottomn center) Kitimat Linerboard and Kraft Paper Mill: Michael Fitxgerald,
Machiniat Apprentice

(bottorm right) Fraser Lake Sawmlill: D'Arcy Henderson, Silviculture Forester

(inspecting a mountain pina beetle infested tree)}




{above) WestPine MDF (left to right) Gary Perry, Preas Operator, Rick McAndrews, Refiner Operator
(bottom left) Terrace Sawmill: Bhajan Kandola, Planer Millwright

(bottomn centery Cariboo Pulp & Paper: Shawn Doucette, Power and Hecovery Area Coordinator
and Mark Blexard, Power and Recovery Shift Supervisor

{bottorn right) Quesnel Sawmill: Nino Celll, Lumber Stacker Operator
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FRASER TIMBER CO.

WEST

CHAIRMAN’'S REPORT

West Fraser had a busy and exciting year in 2006 as the
Company took steps to continue the expansion of its
wood products business. In Novermber, we entered into
an agreement to purchase 13 sawmills from Intermational
Paper Company for approximately US$325 mifion. These
mills are located in seven states across the southemn
United States and, when they are combined with the
Company's two existing mils in Louisiana and Arkansas,
we will have an annual capacity of approximately 2.2
bilion board feet of southerm yellow pine lumber. When
the transaction is complete, West Fraser will be the

second largest lumber producer in North America.

International Paper’s decision {o sell its wood products
division presented West Fraser with a unique opportunity to acquire a significant number of mills in one transaction.
This acquisition is right on target with our objective of improving our geographic and product diversification and it is an
important long-term strategic investtment for our Company. On a proforma basis, following this acquisition 36% of our
lumber production will come from our U.S. division compared to 10% in 2006. Our new management team, a
combination of former Intemational Paper wood products personnel and current West Fraser employees, will be
working hard in the coming months to achieve the synergies expected to be created by this transaction. At the same
time, the establishment of a strong management and cperational base in this area should position us to find further

opportunities for growth in the future.

While much of our effort was directed to U.S. expansion in 2006, we continued to invest aggressively in our plants and
equipment at our Canadian operations. Qur traditionally strong cash flow allows us to invest with confidence - even in

rmarket downtums — in projects that will enhance the Company’s profitability in the future.

While we carried out a number of important capital projects in 2006, we are most excited about the completion and
startup of our new sawmill in Quesnel, B.C. When fully operational later this year, this state-of-the art mill will have one
of the largest manufacturing capacities in the industry, producing up to 600 million board feet of lumber annualy. This
mill incorporates the latest technology and should significantly improve our ability to process beetle-killed timber. We
are very proud of the effort and ingenuity of cur people in designing and building this new mill and look forward to

achieving great success once the mill is fully operational.

| am happy to report that the Company made good progress during the year in continuing to improve our safety
program. | find it extremely gratifying that our employees have such a strong commitment to enhancing both ouwr
safety performance and culture. We are determined to continually improve in this area, with the goal of providing our
empioyees and contractors with the safest work erwironment in the industry. We will spare no effort to achieve this

goal and have implemented a number of excellent initiatives to help us succeed.

West Fraser's cost-driven culture paid important dividends in 2008 as profit margins were squeezed by a precipitous
decline in lumber prices during the second half of the year as well as the continued rise in the value of the Canadian
dollar versus its U.S. counterpart. Higher interest rates and a slowing U.S. economy during 2006 led to a significant

reduction in U.S. housing starts. In the fourth quarter of 2006, housing starts were 23% lower than in the same pericd




of 2005. As a result, lumber prices in the second half of the year fell to leveis nol seen in years. Fortunately, West
Fraser has some of the most modem and efficient sawmills in the industry and a cost structure that should permit the
Company to withstand the challenges of these difficult times. Consequently, we are well positioned to reap the

rewards of the eventual lumber price recovery more quickly than many of our competitors.

U.5. doflar-denominated prices for the pulp and paper products that West Fraser produces were generally strong
throughout the year, atthough profit margins were also adversely affected by the strengthening Canadian dollar.

We are making good strides in improving the efficiency of the pulp and paper business and we hope to see significant
improvement in the next couple of years based on decisions made and actions undertaken in 2006. Specifically, our
Kitimat linerboard mill should benefit from reduced energy costs as a result of the startup of our new turbo-generator in
January 2007. This, combined with continuing operational improvements at the mill, is expected to result in improved

profitability going forward.

The restructuring of the Hinton kraft pulp operations should also result in significant margin improverments starting in
the second half of 2007. In 2006, the Company recorded a $38 milion dollar charge against eamings related to the
closure of the woodroom and the older of the two pulp machings. In the first haf of 2007, we wil complete the
modemization of the remaining pulp machine, after which the annual mill capacity wil be approximately 350,000
tonnes. Our pulp and paper business must show continuous improvement in order to produce an adequate retum on

the capital invested,

In 2006, we tock several other significant steps to improve West Fraser's balance sheet and position the Company
for continued growth. We soid our interest in the Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills to comply with an agreement
emntered into with the Canadian Competition Commissioner in connection with the purchase of Weldwood in 2004.
West Fraser has now futfited all of its obligations under that agreement. In addition, we reorganized the Company's
ownership interests in certain power purchase agreements in Alberta and settled the terrms of compensation with the
B.C. government in respect of its takeback of 1,275,000 cubic meters of our B.C. timber quota. The Company

recorded a pre-tax gain of $97 milion as a result of these asset disposals.

In October, the Canadian and U.S. govermments settled the longstanding softwood lumber dispute between the two
countries. We believe the terms of settiement are deficient in a number of areas and we are discouraged that both
the letter and intent of NAFTA were ignored by Canada’s largest trading partner. While the competitive landscape both
within and outside of Canada has been significantly altered by this seitlerment, we believe that West Fraser’s low-cost

structure continues to provide us with an advantage.

The massive pine beetle infestation that has spread across the B.C. Interior is an important reminder of our
dependence on a heatthy and sustainable environment. Abnomally mild winter temperatures in the B.C. Interior over
the past decade have contributed to a pine beetle epidemic that has destroyed miilions of hectares of pine forests
across the Province. Without a return to traditional cold Canadian winters, this beetle infestation could continue to
spread into Alberta and other parts of Canada. West Fraser, along with the rest of the Western Canadian forest
industry, is working with government and community groups to identify actions that may arrest the spread of this pest,
while at the same time salvaging as much of the attacked timber as possible and replanting so that new forests can

be generated.

~

2006
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WEST FRASER TIMBER CO.

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

Across our business, there are many cther areas in which our operations impact the environment. In these instances,
we try to work together with interested parties to find ways to lessen our impact on the environment, while at the same
time producing products that our customers want and need. Al of our harvesting operations are third-party certified to
intemationally-accredited sustainability standards. Throughout our operations, our foresters, engineers and scientists are
waorking with federal and provincial agencies and third parties to protect and enhance the many non-commerdial values
of the forest. At the same time, we are continually focused on improving the environmental performance of West Fraser's
facilities. Over the years, West Fraser has signfficantly reduced its consumption of fossil fuels by substituting bio-fuels,
including wood waste produced by its manufacturing operations. We are also reducing particulate emissions and
improving the quality of the effiuent that we release back into the ermvironment frorm our operations and limiting the volurnme

of water used by our pulp and paper faciliies.

West Fraser has a responsibility to constantly improve its ervironmenta! performance. In Canada, we operate under
licenses associaled with provincially-owned lands and we recognize the related obligation to act in the interests of the
commumnities in which we operate, That obligation forms the basis on which we make decisions every day throughout

the Company.

In summary, 2006 was a year of great progress for our Company. The completion of the acquisition of the 13 sawmills in
the U.S. will make West Fraser one of the largest lumber producers in North America. More importantly, we have taken
steps to expand significantly in the Company’s core business — solid wood products — at what we hope is the bottorn
of the business cycle while maintaining a conservative balance sheet. Our challenge now is to ensure that we reap the
benefits that our expanded production base should provide. Given the track record of our soiid wood products group, |
amn confident that we will successiully integrate these new operations inte our growing Company and achieve the financial

targets we have set for them.

Qur strong, experienced and performance-driven management team and the dedication of our employees continue
to drive the Company forward. We have a shared commitment to safety, cost control and environmental excellence.
With our expanded production base, low-cost structure and strong balance sheet, West Fraser is well positioned to
lock for oppertunities to build an even stronger and higher-margin business in the future. In doing so, we hope to
provide sacurity and opportunity for our employees, stability for the communities in which we operate and strong

financial returns for our investors.

On behalf of our Board of Directars | want to thank our many employees for their hard work and continuing loyalty to
the great Company they have built. | also want to welcome into the West Fraser family the approximately 2,200 new
employees who will soon join us as a result of our U.S. acquisition. And finally, thanks to our many customers and long-
term investors for their support this past year. All of us in the Company will work hard to retain that support and trust

in the years ahead.

s

Henry H. Ketcham
Chairman of the Board,
President & Chief Executive Officer




THE YEAR IN PICTURES

{above) Quesnel {(Northstar) Sawmill: (left to right) Scott Dubuc, Gerald Donald
and Dlana QGagnon, Lumber Graders

{inset) Houston Sawmill: Jackie Holland, Planer Dry Chain Puller

{below left) Blue staln caused by mountain pine beetle

{below center) Blue Ridge Sawmill: Gary Fortier, Stacker Operator

{below right) Alberta Plywood: Isiah Wallace, Dryer Attendant
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(above) 100 Mile Log Yard (right) 100 Mile Sawmill
Shift Grewn (left to right) Bruce Stusrud, Tony
Morete, Dale DeCraene, Joe Ford, Dan Sommer,
B Bljomaon, Jack Amott, Dan Henderson
{bottom left) LV plant: Dallas Stephens, Sawfiler
{bottom center) Chasm Sawmill: Stacey Dunpuu,
Bin Attendarmt

(bottom right) ANG: (left to right) Vilas Rewatkar, Kerry Meunier, Greg Poirier, Terry Wise, Alax Gann, Rod Wilde




HEALTH & SAFETY POLICY

At West Fraser, safety is a core value and a business priority. We are committed to maintaining a safe
work place and strive 1o be an industry leader by manaqging an effective safety program, complying with
all laws and regulations, and continuously improving our performance. Wa firmly believe that our
company’s safety success depends on every person's active involvement and enthusiastic participation.

Key responsibiliiies include:

. Management is responsible for developing and rmaintaining a company-wide occupational health and safety
program that incliudes core guidelines and systems to measure ongoing effectiveness. Senior rmanagerment
reviews and revises safety guidelines to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and strives
for the highest possible standards.

. Divisional Management is responsible for developing site specific occupational health and safety programs
consistent with company guidelines. Managers develop annual site safety plans with measurable objectives,
establish systems to ensure employees are adequately trained and supervised, and ensure that
occupational health and safety issues are considered in all on-site activities. Managers establish site specific
safety responsibilities for superintendents, supervisors, employees and contractors, and are committed to
continuous improvement.

. Employees are responsible for following established safe work procedures as outiined in their job duties and
company safety guidelines. it is their responsibility to protect themselves and their fellow employees. They
have an obfligation to report unsafe conditions, acts and practices.

SAFETY REPORT

In 2006, the safety program focused on reducing accidents through physical improvements, enhanced hazard
assessments and procedural changes. These improvermnents and other important safety initiatives were supported by
the Board of Directors through the Safety and Envirorrnent Cornmittee, which met twice with Company management
during 2008. The Fraser Lake Division hosted one of these meetings, which provided the commiltee members with the
opportunity to tour the operation and meet with the division’s management and safety committee members. In addition,
specific safety matters are reported to the Board of Directors as part of the agenda at regular board meetings.

Waest Fraser also has a Core Safety Committee, which consists of the CEQ, senior operating management and
corporate personnel. This group met 12 times during 2006 and took actions to improve safety across the company.
Two of these meetings were conducted at the operations and included input and discussions with the operations’

management teams and employee safety committee members.

Specific salety activities during 2006 included:

- improvements in areas such as equipment guarding, lockout procedures, fall protection, and mobile
equipment and pedestrian interface standards and procedures.

. improved training for new and young workers.

. Audits at 17 of West Fraser's manufacturing operations in B.C. and Alberta, and the U.S. South and at eight
of the Company's woodlands operations in B.C. These audits confimned strengths and identified
weaknesses in the safety program and action plans have been developed for areas requiring improverment.

*  The implementation of the first two phases of an improved incident tracking system, which is designed to
provide timely and accurate information on safety statistics. This tool will aliow for better tracking and analysis
of important safety trends.

The Company's continued focus on safety helps to ensure West Fraser's employees work in an ervironment that
includes the equipment, policies and procedures required to reduce the risk of injury. West Fraser’s Board of Directors
and rmanagement team are committed to this mandate and they strongly encourage all employees to support
initiatives directed at attzining this goal.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

WEST FRASER TIMBER CO. LTD.

WEST FRASER MILLS LTD.

N,
:

s

LUMBER
B.C. , ALBERTA
100 Mile House Blue Ridge’
Chasm Hinton
Chetwynd Slave Lake?
Fraser Lake Sundre®
Houston ' u.s. ‘
Qu(?snel (3 mills) - Huttigs®
Smithers Joycet
Terrace
Williams Lake

3

NOGhAWN S

.
ES

PANELS
MDF

Blue Ridge?®
Quesnel

PLYWOOD
Edmonton?
Quesnel
Williams Lake

VENEER & LVL
Rocky Mountain House?
Slave Lake?

Owined through Blue Ridge Lumber Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary.

. Owned through Alberta Plywood Ltd,, a wholly-owned subsidiary.
. Cwned through Sundre Forest Products Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Owned through West Fraser, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary.
COwnad through Ranger Board Inc., 8 wholly-owned subsidiary,

. Joint~vantura interest in Carboo Pulp & Paper Company,
. Joint-ventura interest in Afberta Mawsprint Comparny owned through West Fraser Newsprint Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary.

PULP & PAPER
LINERBOARD

& KRAFT PAPER
Kitimat .

PULP —
Hinton

Quesnel

Quesnel (50%)®

Slave Lake

NEWSPRINT
Whitecourt {50%)7
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Business Qverview

West Fraser Timber Co. Lid. ("West Fraser” or the “Company”™) is an integrated forest products company producing
lumber, wood chips, LVL, MDF, plywood, pulp, linerboard, kraft paper and newsprint. Most of the forest products
manufactured by the Company are sold outside of Canada as commedities. West Fraser holds timber harvesting
rights representing approximately 11 million m?® of AAC providing raw material for its Canadian manufacturing
operations. It also has a leng-term agreement for the supply of a substantial amount of the fibre required by its two
sawmills in the southern United States. All of the fibre requirernents of West Fraser's pulp and paper operations and
MDF plants can be satisfied, directly or indirectly, from the Company’s own operations. The current annual capacities
of West Fraser's wholly-owned manufacturing facilittes and its share of its joint-venture facitities is approximately 4,400
MMibm of lumber; 3,200 Mcf of LVL, 820 MMsf of plywood (3/8"); 300 MMsf of MDF (3/4™); 470,000 tonnes of
linerboard and kraft paper; 580,000 tonnes of BCTMP; 485,000 tonnes of NBSK and 135,000 tonnes of newsprint.

Corporate Structure
The chart on page 12 shows the relationship of West Fraser to its principal direct and indirect subsidiaries and the joint
ventures in which they participate, and where less than 100%, the percentage of its direct or indirect ownership.

West Fraser, which began operations in 1955, assumed its present form in 1966 by amalgamation of a group of
companies under the laws of British Columbia. The Company's principal operating subsidiary, West Fraser Mills Ltd.
("West Fraser Mills™), subsists under the laws of British Columbia and took its present form on January 1, 2005 when
its predecessor with the same name was amalgamated with Weldwood of Canada Uimited (“Weldwood™), which was
acquired on December 31, 2004,

Blue Ridge Lumber Inc., Ranger Board Inc. and Sundre Forest Products Inc. are incorporated under the laws of
Alberta. Alberta Plywood Ltd. and West Fraser Newsprint Ltd. subsist under the laws of Canada. West Fraser, Inc. is
incorporated under the laws of Delaware. Alberta Newsprint Company (“ANC") is an unincorporated joint venture
govemed by the laws of Alberta. Cariboo Pulp & Paper Company is an unincorporated joint venture govemed by the
laws of British Columbia.

West Fraser's executive office is located at B58 Beatty Street, Suite 501, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6B 1C1.

Forward-looking Statements

This Annual informmation Form. dated February 15, 2007, and the Annual Report of which # formms a part, contain historical mformation, descriptions
of current circumstances and statements about potential future developmaeants. The latter, which are forward-looking staternents, are presentad
to provide reasonable guidance to the reader but the accuracy of these statements depends on a number of assumptions and is subject 10
variocus risks and uncertainties. These statements are not guaranteed by the Company and actual outcornes and results will depend on a number
of tactors that could aftect the ability of the Company to execute its business plans, nckading those matters desceribbed under “Risk Factors”, and
such outcomas and results may diffar materially from those anticipated or projected. Accordingly, readers should exercise caution in relying upon
torward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to refiect subsequent
avents of circumstances,
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History

West Fraser was founded in 1855 when three brothers, Henry H. Ketcham Jr,, Wiliam P. Ketcham and Samuel K.
Ketcham acquired a lumber planing mill at Quesnel, BC. From 1955 to 1979, the business expanded through the
acquistion of a number of sawmills arnd refated timber rights in the interior of British Colurnbia and the developrnent of a

small chain of home improvement stores. Recent key milestones in the Company's history are:

-
-]

1979 Formation of the Quesnel River Pulp {("QRP"} joint wventure, in which West Fraser owned 50%, to construct
and operate a pulp mill at Quesnel, BC. West Fraser's ownership increased to 100% in 2002.

1981 Acquisition of a 40% interest in Eurocan Pulp & Paper Co., which owned a linerboard and kraft paper mill
at Kitimat, BC, two sawmills and partial interests in two joint-venture sawmills elsewhere in British

Columbia. West Fraser's ownership was increased to 50% in 1984 and 100% in 1893.

1989 Formation of the ANC joint venture tc construct and cperate a newsprint mi!l at Whitecourt, AB,

with West Fraser owning a 50% interest.

1995 Acquisition of the Blue Ridge sawmill and Ranger Board MDF plant both at Blue Ridge, AB and the Slave
Lake Puip mill at Slave Lake, AB.
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19496 Operations begin at the WestPine MDF plant at Quesnel, BC.
1999 Acquisition of a plywood plant in Edmonton, AB and a veneer plant and stud mill at Slave Lake, AB.
2000 Acquisition of two sawmills in the southern United States.

2001 Acquisition of a sawmill at Chasm, BC.
Sale of timber plantations in Uruguay.

Sale of retad home improvement business.
2004 Acquisition of Weldwood, an integrated forest products business.

2006 Sale of Bums Lake and Decker Lake sawmills.
Operations begin at the new Quesnel, BC sawmill.
Agreemert entered into to acquire 13 sawmils in the southem United States, expected to complate by
the end of the first quarter of 2007.

Sales Revenue (S milions) Table |
Year ended December 31 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Lumber 1,756 2,021 1,475 1,141 1,149
Panels 475 &N 284 230 247
Pulp & Paper 1,095 1,045 641 550 590
Total 3,326 3,577 2,400 1,921 1,986
Fibre Supply

British Columbia
The Province owns about 95% of the timberdand in British Columbia. Timber harvesting operations are regulated by
the provincial government under vanous laws which empower the B.C. Ministry of Forests and Range to grant various

torms of timber tenures, including forest licences, TFLs and timber sale licences.




A forest licence confers the right to harvest a specified volurme of timber from public lands, and usually has a term of
15 years. A TFL has a term of 25 years and requires the licensee to manage a defined land area on a sustained-yield
basis. Legislation covering these tenures enables the Province to offer replacement tenures at any time between the
fourth and ninth anniversaries of the dates on which they were granted. Replacement of a forest licence or TFL is
subject to satisfactory performance by the licensee and the entry into of an agreement between the licensee and the

Province. The Province may also grant short-term, non-replaceable forest licences.

West Fraser’s timber tenures are currently due for replacement and replacement documents have been received and
accepted for approximately 20% of the Company’s B.C. tenures. West Fraser expects most of the balance to be
replaced in 2007. The Province is required to consult with interested aboriginal groups (“First Nations”) before making
replacement offers. This requirement has delayed the replacement process and may result in the addition of new
terms and conditions to West Fraser's tenures, some of which could adversety affect the Company’s timber

harvesting rights.

The AAC of a tenure is determined by a licensee for a TFL and by the B.C. Ministry of Forests and Range for a forest
licence. In abl cases, the AAC must be approved by the Chief Forester of the Province. Annual cut levels are imited by

five-year maximum levels.

‘The British Columbia Forest Act requires the Chief Forester of the Province to review the AAC for each timber supply
area and TFL at least once every five years to ensure that it reflects current information, practices and govemment
policies. The most recent review began in 2002 and is scheduled for completion in 2007. All tenures in which West

Fraser has an interest are currently in compliance with their cut control requirements,

Effective March 31, 2003, the Province of British Columbia reduced the AAC allocated to holders of long-term tenures
by 20%. Each specified corporate group holding timber tenures was subject to an overall 20% reduction with an
exemption for the first 200,000 m? of AAC held. On June 30, 20086, the Company entered into a settiernent agreement
with the Province and received compensation of $31 million for the 1,275,000 m? reduction of timber rights and the

loss of certain related assets.

Alberta

The Province owns more than 90% of the timberiand in Alberta. Forest operations on public lands are regulated by
the provincial government under the Alberta Forests Act, which empowers the Alberta Minister of Sustainable
Resource Development to grant various forms of timber tenures, including FMAs, timber quotas and timber permits.
An FMA gives the holder rights to establish, grow and harvest timber on a defined land area. An FMA generally has a
20-year terrn with further 20-year renewal periods. Each FMA requires the holder to pericdically conduct a forest
inventory and prepare a detailed forest management plan to determine the AAC and to have annual operating plans

approved by the Minister.

A timber quota is renewable and gives the holder the right to harvest, during a period of 20 years, a specified
percentage of the AAC of a Forest Management Unit, as determined by the Minister. In areas where there is no FMA,
the Minister is responsible for completing a forest inventory, preparing a forest management plan and allocating a
volume of timber to be harvested by each qucta holder, A quota holder must obtain a timber licence issued by the
Minister that describes the area planned for timber harvesting and the period during which the $mber is to be harvested,
usually three to five years. The volume of timber that may be harvested under a timber quota may be varied by the

Minister and is generally subject to review by the Minister every five years.
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ANNUAL INFORMATION FORM

Table I summarnzes the timber tenures supplying the mills that West Fraser owns or in which it has an interest, the

AAC and the actual harvest in 2006.

Timber Tenures (000 m¥) Table il

Location Tenure' Expiry AAC? Harvest®

B.C. Long-term 2007-2025 5175 5,658

16 Short-term 2007-2015 205 665
Alberta Coniferous Long-Term 2008-2026 4,284 4,638

Deciduous Long-Term 2009-2019 a75 918

1. Long-term tenwres include TFLs, FMAS, timber quotas and torest ficences, which are renewable timber tenuras. Shorl-term tenures include
non-replaceable !cxgst icences.

2. Excludes 75,000 m™ ternporary reduction of AAC related to consent agreement entered into with the Competition
Commissioner regarding ther Weldwood acquisition.

3. Includes 390,000 m™ related to interest in Bums Lake and Decker Lake sawmils, sokd October 31. 2006.

Annual log requirements for West Fraser's Canadian sawmills, LV plant and phwood facilities operating at the
capacities described in this Annual Information Form total approximately 15 million m?, of which approximately 70%

can be obtained from the tenures described in Table It The remaining requirements are met through a combination
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of direct or indirecl purchases at government timber auctions. competitive bids on non-replaceable forest licences

and agreements with Frst Nations’ timber rights holders, community forest tenure holders and woodlot owners.

U.S. South
Woest Fraser's sawmills at Joyce, Louisiana and Muttig, Arkansas, consume approximately 1.3 milion m® of logs annually,
of which approximately 60% is supplied under a long-term agreement. The balance s obtained on the open market.

Harvesting Operations
All of West Fraser's harvesting operations are carried out by independent contractors and are supervised by the
Company's woodiands staff to ensure compliance with the terms of appiicable timber tenures, statutes and

regulations, and with West Fraser's policies.

Reforestation

Timber tenures in British Columbia and Alberta require the holders to camry out reforestation to ensure the re-
establishment of the forest after harvesting. Determining how to reforest a particular area is based on the climate,
terrain, species and other factors affecting regeneration. Each of West Fraser's reforestation projects is planned and

supervised by its forestry staff and is approved by the relevant government authority.

Stumpage

The Provinces of British Columbia and Alberta levy fees, commaonly referred to as stumpage, on timber harvested on
provincial land. Under the current system in Alberta, stumpage is principally tied to product prices. In B.C., sturmpage
is based on timber sales data derived frem publicly auctioned timber. Prior to April 2008, stumpage in B.C. was based
on the Statistics Canada lumber and wood chip price indices.

Wood Chip Supply

Substantially all West Fraser's wood chip requirements are supphed directly or indirectly from its own operations, which
reduces its exposure to risks asscciated with wood chip price fluctuations and supply shortages. The fibre
requirements of the Company's B.C. pulp and paper mills and MDF plant are met primarity by West Fraser's sawmilling
operations in British Columbia. The Alberta MDF plant obtains its fibre from the Blue Ridge sawmili and other sawmills
in the area. Most of the fibre requirements of the Slave Lake Pulp mill are available under the Slave Lake FMA, and
additional fibre is obtained from industrial salvage and logs purchased from local suppliers and processed at Slave
Lake's facilties. The Hinton Pulp mill obtains its fibre from the Hinton sawmill and other sawmills in the area, including

those belonging to West Fraser. Aimost all of the fibre requirements of ANC are obtained from local sawmills, including




the Blue Ridge sawmill, through log-for-chip trading of logs harvested from ANC's tenures. The balance is obtained

from direct fibre purchases.

Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions
West Fraser regularly invests in upgrading and expanding its facilities and operations. Table Il shows the capital

expenditures and acquisitions during the past five years.

Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions ($ milions) Table Kl
Year ended Decermber 31 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Lumber 123 147 95 56 84
Panels 20 24 10 5 12
Pulp & Paper 66 47 32 7 20
Corporate & Other 3 B 3 1 7

212 224 140 79 123
Acqulisitions — — 1,124 6 —
Total 212 224 1,264 85 123

Human Resources

At December 31, 2006, West Fraser employed approximately 6,800 individuals, including the Company's share of
those in joint venture operations. Total remuneration paid to these employees in 2006 was approximately $485 million,
Approximately 50% of West Fraser's ermployees are covered by collective agreements. Certain of these agreements
expire in each of 2007, {covering 1% of employees), 2008 (covering 20% of employees) and 2009 {covering 27% of
employees).

Markets

West Fraser's products are sold in markets open to a number of companies with similar products. Purchasing
decisions by customers are based on price, quality and service. Prices and sales volumes are influenced by generat
economic conditions, Table IV shows selected average benchmark prices for the past five years for products of the

type produced by West Fraser, athough these prices do not necessarily reflect the prices obtained by West Fraser.

Average Benchmark Prices (In US $ except plywood) Table IV
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

2 x 4 random length SPF (per Mfbrm)’ 296 353 394 277 270

SYP #2 Wost 2 x 4 (per Mibrm)? 330 422 387 a3 302

Plywood {per Msf 3/8" basis)® Cdn § 366 387 53 442 405

MDF (per Msf 3/4" basis)* 445 414 392 365 355

Newsprint {per tonne)® 655 600 544 493 455

NBSK (per tonne)® 721 646 640 553 488

Linerboard (per tonne)’ 554 472 461 404 443

Sources;

1. Random Lengths - 2 x 4, #2 & Better - Net FOB mi,

2. Random Lengths - 2 x 4 ~ Net FOB milt Wastside.

3. Crow's Market Report - Delivered Toronto.

4, Resocurce Information Systems, nc. - MDF vvasterm U.S. - Nat FOB mill.

5. Resource Information Systems, Inc. - LS. dedivered 48.8 gram newsprint.

6. Rescurce Inforrnation Systemns, Inc. - U.S. list price, defvered U.S.

7. Pulp & Paper Wegk - Linbleached linertxoard kraft, East.

Research and Development
West Fraser supports industry research and development organizations, and conducts research and development at
several plants to improve processes, maximize resource utiization and develop new products and environmental

applications.
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Lumber
Capacity and Production (MMbm)' Tabte v
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Capacity — year-end 4,400 4,700 3,030 2,860 2,600
Production:
Quesnel 336 366 378 368 337
Quesnel Finger-Joint 14 15 15 14 15
Wiliams Lake 241 244 239 222 197
Smithers 309 3m 289 264 224
Chetwynd 245 250 250 244 232
Fraser Lake 334 321 349 336 269
Terrace o2 20 81 36 83
Chasm 284 283 254 229 138
Houston? asse 339 165 154 148
Burns Lake?? 222 282 87 84 2}
Decker Lake®? 65 75 24 22 21
Northstar? 167 158 — — —
100 Mite? 285 245 - - —
Blue Ridge 298 283 289 273 264
Slave Lake 23 24 24 26 27
Red Earth* — 37 26 23 28
Hinton? 27 268 — — —
Sundre? 253 243 - — —
Huttig 177 168 13 10 101
Joyce 212 220 189 189 182
Total Production 4,186 4,212 2,772 2,584 2,347

1. Tabke reflects 300% capacity and production tor consofidated operations. For years prior to 2005, Houston, Bums Lake and Docker Lake weara
accounted for as joint ventures and therefore figures reflact West Fraser's ownership percentage.

2. Mills acquired December 31, 2004.

3. Includes production ta October 31, 2006, whan the Comparty's nterest in these milts was sold.

4. Shut down September 2005.

Operations:

West Fraser produces lumber and by-product wood chips from 16 sawmils and has a ptant at Quesne! which

produces finger-jointed studs out of by-product tim blocks. The Company also has a wood-treating facility at the

Sundre sawmilk.

Sales:

Lumber produced at West Fraser's Canadian sawmills and sold to North American customers is marketed and sold
from the Company’'s sales office in Quesnel, BC, while sales to offshore markets are made from an export sales office
in Vancouver, BC. Ofishore sales activities are complemented by customer service offices in Japan and China, Lumber

produced at West Fraser's two U.S. sawmills is marketed by a sates group in West Monroe, Louisiana.

West Fraser sells lumber to wholesale distributors, buying cooperatives, lumber brokers, retaillers and
rermanufacturers, as well as to lumber treating businesses. From time to time, the Company purchases lumber for

resale in order to meet the timing, quantity or quality requirements of its customers.




In 2006, approxamately 73% of umber sales by value were made to customers in the United States. 20% to customers in
Canada and 7% to customers in Asia, predominantly Japan. Most lumber shipments to North Amencan customers were
made by rall, athough some were by truck or ocean camers. Offshore shipments were through public tenminals in Vancouver.

Panels

Capacity and Production Table VI
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

MDF (MMsf 3/4" basis)

Capacity — year-end 300 300 290 270 250

Production:

Ranger Board 155 158 155 149 138

WestPine 133 136 130 12 "1

Total Production 288 294 285 261 248

Plywood (MMsf 3/8" basis)

Capacity — year-end 820 820 280 270 260

Production:

Alberta Plywood 262 251 249 248 235

Williarns Lake' 239 248 — — —

Quesnel! 227 222 — — —

Total Production 728 7 249 248 235

LVL (Mcf)!

Capacity — year-end 3,200 3,200 — — —

Total Production 3,000 3,179 — — —

1. Acquired December 31, 2004.

Operations:
West Fraser’s panel operations include two MDF mills, each with the flexibility to manufacture varying thicknesses and
sizes, three plywood mills that primarily produce standard softwood sheathing plywood, an LVL mill andg a veneer mill

which produces veneer for use solely in West Fraser's ptywood and LVL plants.

Sales:

MDF is marketed under the names “Ranger™” and “WestPine™" out of West Fraser's Edmonton, AB sales affice and
through distributors under the direction of West Fraser's sales personnel. Plywood is marketed out of the Company’s
sales office in Quesnel to retal outlets, wholesale distributors, remanufacturers and treating businesses. LVL is marketed
out of the Company's Calgary, AB sales office primarily to independent distributors and manufacturers.

In 2006, approximately 63% of MDF sales by value were made to customers in the U.S., 31% to customers in Canada
and 6% to customers in Asia; approximately 90% of plywood sales by value were made to Canada, 9% to the United
States and the balance to offshore customers; and approximately 54% of LVL sales by value were made to U.S.
customers and the balance to Canadian customers. Shipments to North America were by both rail and truck and

offshore shipments were by bulk and container vessels.
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Pulp and Paper

Pulp
Capacity and Production (Mtonnes) TFable VI
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
BCTMP
20 Capacity — year-end 580 585 550 550 540
T E Production:
§ QRP' 343 334 307 310 190
: g Slave Lake Pulp 218 218 215 13 207
: Total Production 561 552 522 523 397
§ NBSK
@ Capacity — year-end 485 585 — — —
z Production:
—g‘ Hinton?? as1 420 — — —
§ Cariboo®* 162 161 — — —
< Total Production 543 581 — —_ -_
1. Additional 50% ownearship of QRP acquired November 1, 2002.
2. Acquired December 3t, 2004,
3. Reflects closure of #1 kne at Hirton Pulp in 2006,
4. Reflects West Fraser's share of ownership.

Operations:

West Fraser produces BCTMP, primarily from aspen, at the Stave Lake pulp mill and BCTMP, primarily from softwood,
at the QRP milt, These pulps are used by paper manufacturers to produce printing and writing papers, paperboard
products and a variety of other paper grades. NBSK is produced at the Hinton and Cariboo pulp mills and is used by
paper manufacturers to produce a variety of paper products, including printing and writing papers and tissue products.

Sales:

Both BCTMP and NBSK are marketed out of West Fraser's pulp and paper sales office in Vancouver, BC, In 2006,
approximately 43% of the combined pulp sales by value were sold 10 customers in North America, 40% to customers
in Asia and the Far East, 11% to customers in Europe and the balance to other offshore customers. Shipments within
Noerth America were primarily by rail and pulp sold to offishore customers was transported by rail to Vancouver and

then shipped by bulk and container vessels.

Linerboard and Kraft Paper

Capacity and Production (Micnnes) Table Vil
2006 2005 2004 2003’ 2002

Capacity — year-end 470 450 450 450 450

Production:

Linerboard 334 337 34 205 305

Kraft Paper 121 n2 105 75 105

Total Production 459 449 446 280 410

1, Production affected by a strike.

Operations:

West Fraser produces unbleached linerboard and kraft paper at its Kitimat mill. Linerboard is produced in basis weights
ranging from 125 to 400 grams per sqguare metre, and distributed worldwide to producers of corrugated shipping
containers. Krafl paper is manufactured in basis weights ranging from 60 to 147 grams per square metre and used in

producing mutti-wall industrial sacks and in various specialty products.




Sales:
Linerboard and kraft paper are marketed out of West Fraser's office in Vancouver, BC. Most overseas sales are

arranged through the worldwide sales network of Stora Enso Oy under a long-term agency agreement.

In 2006, approximately 30% of all sales by value were made to customers in North America, 22% to customers in Asia
and the Far East, 14% to customers in Europe, and the balance to customers in other markets. Sales to North
American customers were shipped by a combination of barge. rail and truck. Offshore sales were either shipped

directly frorm Kitimat via butk vessels or barged to Vancouver for shipment by container vessels.

Newsprint

Capacity and Production® (Mtonnes) Table IX
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Capacity — year-end 135 135 135 133 130

Total Production 125 130 135 127 128

1. Reflacts West Fraser's 50% share of ownership,

Operations:
The ANC mill in Whitecourt, AB produces standard newsprint in two basis weights: 45 and 48.5 grams per square

metre.

Sales:
Newsprint is sold to various publishers in North America through a partnership owned indirectly by the ANC owners.
In 2006, approximately 74% of all sales by value were made to customers in the United States and the balance to

customers in Canada.

Risk Factors
A detailed discussion of risk factors is included in “Management's Discussion & Analysis - Risks and Uncertainties”,

which is incorporated herein by reference.
External Issues Affecting West Fraser's Business in 2006

Economic Conditions

West Fraser's earnings are sensitive to changes in world economic conditions, primarily those in North America,
Europe and Asia. Most of the Company’s revenues are from sales of commodities for which prices are sensitive to
variations in supply and demand. Since most of these sales are in foreign currencies, mainly U.S. dollars, currency

exchange fluctuations are a major factor.

Softwood Lumber Agreement

Effective October 12, 2006, a Softwood Lurmnber Agreement between Canada and the United States (the “SLA 2006™)
came nto force, and has a term of seven years which may be extended for another two years by agreement. After
the initial 18 months of the term, either party may terminate the SLA 2006 by providing not less than 6 months notice

to the other.

Under the SLA 2006, the Company is no longer required by the United States to deposit countervaiing and
antidumping duties on softwood lumber shipped to the U.S., but will instead pay export taxes to Canada. These export
taxes will range from 0% — 15% for producers in the provinces of B.C. and Alberta, and will vary depending on the
reference iumber prica. Also, subject to U.S. lumber consumption and the volume of lumber shipments from B.C. and

Alberta to the U.S., an additional 50% surcharge on the applicable export tax may be levied.

N
-l

=
-4
o)
w
z
0
b=
<
2
@«
o)
w
z
-
<
2
Zz
Z
<




ANNUAL INFOBRMATION FORM

Energy
West Fraser's exposure to energy costs includes the cost to purchase electricity. natural gas. gasoline, dieset fuels,

resins and other natural gas-based chemicals and supplies. and fuel surcharges on purchased transportation.

In British Columbia, electricity is purchased from the provincial utility at regulated prces based largely on generation

costs. In Alberta, West Fraser is effectively hedged against electricity market price fluctuations for a substantiat volurme

N
N

of its electricity consumption through ownership of a fixed long-term power purchase agreement that provides

electricity based on generation costs and inflation,

The Company's pulp and paper operations are significant consumers of energy. However, both the Hinton and
Cariboo pulp mills have cogeneration facilities that produce electricity to satisty a considerable portion of their energy
requirements. In January 2007, the Kitmat mill completed a cogeneration project that will supply a portion of its

alectricity requirements.

Environment

WWest Fraseco's operations are subject to various federal, provincial, state and local environmental protection laws and
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regulations both in Canada and the United States. The Company has internal programs under which all forestry and
manufacturing operations are audited for compliance with applicable laws and standards, and with West Fraser's
management systems. All of the Company's woodlands operations in Canada, and the harvesting operations of its
key IU.S. suppliers, are third-party certified to intemationally-recognized sustainable forest management standards.
The Salety & Environment Committee of the Company's Beard of Directors participates in reviews of environmental
matters and makes recommendations to the Board from time to time. The Committee also pericdically tours selected
West Fraser operations. West Fraser has adopted an Environmental Policy, a copy of which is contained in the
Company's Annual Repart.

First Nations Claims

The potential existence of abonginal title and rights over substantial portions of British Columbia, including areas where
the Comparny’s timber tenures are located, has created uncertainty with respect to property rights and natural
resowrce development in the Province. The Supreme Count of Canada (the "SCC") determined in 1997 that First
Naticns may possess rights in respect of land used or occupied by their ancestors where treaties have not been

concluded to ceal with those rights. Very few areas of British Columbia are the subject of such treaties.

In 2004, the SCC confimned that the Crown must consutft with First Nations before authorizing any activity that might
infinge on their interests in certain circumstances and, when appropriate 10 do so, seek to0 accommodate those
interests by minimizing interference with themn. Authorizations requiring consuftation may include approval of cutting
permits and required ministerial action relating to the transfer or renewal of Crown timber harvesting tenures. The
process of consultation and, when appropriate, accommodation is currently not clearly defined, creating some
uncertainty with respect to Crown timber harvesting rights held by forestry companies in British Cotlumbia, including

West Fraser.

Failure of the govermment of British Columbia to adequately discharge its obligations to First Nations may affect the
validity of its actions in dealing with public rights, including the granting of Crown timber harvesting rights. This
uncertainty may be alleviated by the steps the Province has been taking in its “New Relationship™ with First Nations,
its policy of entering into Forest and Range Agreements with First Nations across the province. the negotiation of
treaties with First Nations, and further judgments of the courts. At this time, the Company cannot predict whether First
Nations claims will have a material adverse affect on its timber harvesting rights or on its ability to exercise or renew

them, or secure other timber harvesting rights.




Capital Structure

Share Capital and Market for Securities

The authorized share capital of the Company consists of 230,000,000 shares divided into:
{a) 200,000,000 Common shares,
(b) 20,000,000 Class B cormymnon shares, and

(G} 10,000,000 Preferred shares, issuable in series. 23
z
The Common shares and Class B common shares are equal in all respects, including the right to dividends, except g
that each Class 8 common share may at any time be exchanged for one Common share. The Common shares are w
listed and traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol WFT. As at December 31, 2006, the issued share (f)
capital consisted of 37,886,731 Cormmeon shares and 4,885,206 Class B common shares. E
T
Market for Securities E
The following table sets forth market prices and trading volumes of the Company's Common shares on the Toronto z
Stock Exchange for each month of 2006 and 2005. g
Table X Z
20086 2005 <
High Low Close Volume Close Volume
(000's) {000's)
January a1.77 39.22 39.50 o952 4710 1,641
February 42.45 37.31 42.00 879 52.27 1,016
March 42.50 39.99 41.85 2,307 50.80 1,413
Aprit 44.00 41.36 43.20 1,411 45.00 1,080
May 43.34 36.62 37.15 1,067 46.37 1,288
June 39.00 36.25 37.50 581 47.25 705
Juty 40.14 35.51 az.52 766 48.01 844
August 3g9.12 34.85 37.10 7N 46.75 1.091
September 37.96 35.68 35.68 711 44.44 848
October 38.45 35.70 37.50 1,070 40.95 849
November 43.50 37.01 42.99 1.31 41.25 628
December 43.55 40.66 41.38 775 41.22 1,440
Total 12,721 12,853
Source: www.tradingdata. isx.com.
Dividends

The declaration and payment of dividends is within the discretion of the Boara of Directors of the Company. Historically,
divdends have been declared on a quarterly basis payable after the end of each quarter. In each of 2004, 2005 and 2006,
the Company declared cash dividends of $0.56 per Common share and Class B common share. There can be no
assurance that dividends will continue to be declared and paid by the Company in the future as the discretion of the Board
of Directors will be exercised from time to time taking into account the circumstances of the Company at the time.

Transfer Agent
Waest Fraser's transfer agertt and registrar is CIBC Mellon Trust Company with registers of transfers in Vancouver and

Toronto.

Experts

West Fraser's auditors are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC"}, who prepared the Auditors' Report included with
the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2006. PwC has confirmed that it
is independent with respect to the Company, within the meaning of the Rules of Professiona!l Conduct of the Institute

of Chantered Accountants of British Columbia, as of February 15, 2007.
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Directors and Ofticers

Directors

The names and municipalities of residence of the directors of the Company, their principal occupations during the past

frve years and the periods during which they have been directors of the Company are as follows:

Name and Municipality
of Residence

Principal Qccupation

Director Since

Henry H. Ketcham

Vancouver, British Columbia

Clark S. Binkley" 344

Cambridge, Massachusetls

J. Duncan Gibson» 281

Toronto, Ontario

William H, Ketcham?®*?*
New York, New York

william P. Ketcham'%4

Seattle, Washington

Harald H. Ludwig? **
West Vancouver,

British Columbia

Brian F. MacNeilP? 23
Calgary, Alberta

Robert L. Phillips®**

Vancouver, British Columbia

Janice G. Rennie 384

Edmonton, Alberta

Chairman of the Board, President and

Chief Executive Officer

Managing Director, International Forestry

Investment Advisors (advisory services)

Investor

Managing Director, Serafin Partners LLP

(private investrment)

Chairman of the Board, Henry H. Ketcham

Lumber Co.. Inc. {private investment)

President, Macluan Capital Corporation

(diversified private equity investrments)

Chairman, Petro-Canada Inc.
{energy, exploration, development,

refining and marketing)

Corporate Director

Corporate Director

September 16, 1985

February 13, 1992

Aprit 29, 1997

Aprit 23, 2002

December 1, 1966

May 2, 1995

September 19, 2000

April 28, 2005

April 28, 2004

1. Membar of the Audit Committea.

2, Mamber of the Compensation Commities.
3. Mamber of the Safety & Emdronment Committae,
4, Mermber of the Governance & Nominating Commitiee.

5. Lead Director.

Each director has held the same or a similar principal occupation with the organization indicated or a predecessor
thereof for the last five years except for Clark S. Binkley who before April 2005 was Senior Vice President, Hancock
Natural Resource Group Inc.; Wiliam H. Ketcham who, before March 2005 was a Managing Director of Fortress
Investment Group, before August 2003 was the managing partner of Serafin Partners, LLP and before December 2002
was Vice-President, Apex Leaming Inc.: Willam P. Ketcham who before January 2005 was also the President of Henry
M. Ketcham Lumber Co., Inc.; Robert L. Phillips who before July 2004 was President and Chief Executive Cfficer of the
BCR Group of Companies; and Janice G. Rennie who from September 2004 io September 2005 was Senior Vice
President, Human Resources and Organizational Effectiveness with EPCOR Wilities inc. and before September 2004
was Principal of Rennie and Associates. The term of office of each director will expire at the conclusion of the

Company’s next annual general meeting.




Officers

Name and Municipality
of Residence

Office Held/Principal Occupation

Henry H. Ketcham

Vancouver. British Columbia

Gerald J. Miller

Vancouver, British Columbia

Martti Solin

West Vancouver, British Columbia

Gary W. Townsend
Quesnel, British Columbia

D. Wayne Clogg
Victoria, British Cohimbia

Redger M. Hutchinson

West Vancouver, British Columbia

William H. LeGrow

Coquitlam, British Columbia

Christopher D. Mctver
Quesnel, British Columbia

Edward R. Seraphim

North Vancouver, British Columbia

Zohan F. Szucs
Cogquitlamn, British Columbia

Larry S. Hughes

Vancouver, British Columbia

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Executive Vice-President, Operations

Executive Vice-President, Finance, Corporate Development

and Chief Financial Officer

President, Solid Wood Products

Vice-President, Woodtands

Vice-President, Comporate Controller

Vice-President, Transportation and Energy

Vice-President, Lumber Sales

Vice-President, Pulp and Paper

Vice-President, Panelboard

Secretary
Partner, Lang Michener LLP {lawyers)
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Each officer has held the same or a similar principal occupation with the crganization indicated or a predecessor
therecf for the last five years except for Gerald J. Miller, who before February 15, 2007 was Executive Vice-President,
Pulp and Paper and before 2005 was Group Vice-President, Pulp and Paper and Vice-President, Administration; Martti
Solin, who before February 15, 2007 was Executive Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Otficer and before
2005 was Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer; Gary W. Townsend, who before February 15, 2007 was
Exective Vice-President, Sokd Wood Products and before 2005 was Group Vice-President, Lumber Operations;
Rodger M. Hutchinson, who before 2003 was Corporate Controller; Edward R. Seraphim, who before February 15,
2007 was Vice-President, Pulp and Paper Sales and Christopher D. Mciver who from January 2005 to December 2005
co-managed the lurmber sales department integration effort and before January 2005 was MDF Operations Manager.
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Shareholdings of Directors and Officers

As at December 31, 20086, the directors and senior officers of the Company as a group, beneficially owned directly, or
exercised control or direction over 5,598,309 Common shares and 1,911,794 Class B common shares, being 15% of
the outstanding Commeoen shares, 39% of the cutstanding Class B comrmon shares and 18% of the outstanding voting

shares of the Company.

N
3

Governance

Corporate governance is guided by West Fraser's Corporate Govermance Policy, a copy of which may be viewed on
the Company's web site: www.westfraser.com. The Board of Directors has established a Governance & Nominating
Committee comprised of all non-management directors which provides support for the stewardship and governance
role of the Board in reviewing and making recommendations on the compaosition of the Board, the tunctioning of the
Board and its committees, succession planning as well as all other corporate governance matters and practices. At
each meeting of the Board during 2006, the Committee met without management representatives present and

reviewed these and other issues.

Audit Committee
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The Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors assists the Board in fulfiling its responsibility to overses the

Company's financial reporting and audit process. The full text of the Audit Commitiee’'s Charter is set out below.

Audit Committee Charter
The Audit Committee Charter, which is set out below, was approved by the Board on December 9, 2003.

General Mandate
To assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibility to oversee the Company's financial reporting and audit processes, its system
of intermal controls and its process for monitoring compliance with applicable financial reporting and disclosure laws and its

own policies.

Responsibilities
The Committee will camry out the following responsibilities:

Financial Statements

» Review significart accounting and financial reporting issues, including complex or unusual transactions, significant
contingencies and highly judgmental areas, and recent professional and regulatory pronouncements, and understand their
impact on the Company's financial statements.

* Review interim financial reports (including financial statements, management's discussion and analysis and related news
refeases) with management and the auditors before fling with regulators and consider whether they are complete and
consistent with the information known to Committee members.

* Understand how management develops interim financial information, and the nature and extent of auditar invoivement.

* Review with management and the auditors the results of the audit, including any difficutties encountered.

* Review the annual financial statements, and consider whether they are complete, consistent with information known to
Committee members, and reflect appropriate accounting principles and provide a recommendation to the Board with
respect to the approval of the statements.

¢+ Review with management and the auditors all matters required 1o be communicated to the Committee under generally

accepted auditing standards.

Internal Control

+ Congider the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over annual and interim financial reporting, including
information technology security and control.

*  Lnderstand the scope of the auditors' review of internal control over financial reporting, and obtain reports on significant

findings and recommendations, together with management’'s responses.




Audit

Review the auditors' proposed audit scope and approach.

Review the performance of the auditors, and provide recommendations to the Board with respect to the nomination of
the auditors for appointment and remuneration.

Review and confirm the independence of the auditors by obtaining statements from the auditors on relationships

between the auditors and the Company, including non-audit senices. and discussing the refationships with the auditars,

Compliance

Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with financial reponting and disclosure laws and the
results of management's investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary action) of any instances of non-compliance.
Review the findings of any exarmninations by regulatory agencies, and any auditor observations,

Obtain regular updates from management and Company legal counsel regarding comgliance matters.

Reporting Requirements

.

Regularty report to the Board about Committee activities, issues and related recommendations.
Provide an open avenue of communication between the auditors and the Board.

Review any reports the Company issues that relate to Committee responsibilites,

Other Responsibilities

Institute and oversee special investigations as needed.

Develop and implement a policy for the approval of the provision of non-audit services by the auditors and assessing
the independence of the auditors in the context of these engagements.

Be available to receive and deal with, on a confidential basis, reports, complaints or other communications from officers
or employees of the Company.

Perform other activities related to this charter as requested by the Board,

Review and assess the adequacy of the Committee Charter annually, requesting Board approval for proposed changes.
Review tenns of any Code of Conduct established by the Board and respond to any related compliance issues.

Confirm annually to the Board that all responsibilities outhined in this charter have been carmried out,

Qualifications and Procedures

The composition of the Committee wili comply with applicable laws including requirements for independence,
unrefated to management, financial literacy and audit experience.

The Committee will meet at least four times annually, and more frequently as circumstances dictate, and the
CFO and a representative of the auditors should be available on request to attend all meetings.

The Committee should meet privately in executive session with representatives of each of management and of
the auditors to discuss any matters of concern to the Committee or such members, including any post-audit
management letter.

Mimnutes of each meeting should be prepared, approved by the Committee and circulated to the full Board.
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Members

The following identifies each current mermber of the Audit Committee, and the education and experience of each member
that is relevant to the performance of the member's responsibifities as an Audit Committee member. All members of the
Audit Committee are considered “independent” and “financially literate” within the meaning of MI 52-110.

J. Duncan Gibson
Mr. Gibson holds a Bachelor of Commerce and a Masters of Business Administration. His career spanned 27 years
with the Toronto-Dominion Bank, including nine years in the Corporate Banking, U.S. Division, and as Vice Chairman

with responsibility for the Cormmercial Banking Division.

Cilark S. Binkley
Mr. Binkley holds a Bachelor of Arts in Applied Mathermatics and a PhD in Forestry and Enwvircnmental Studies. He was
recentty the Chief Investrment Officer of the world's largest private equity timberiand investment firm, He has served

as a director of public and private forest products companies.

wWilliam P. Ketcham
Mr, Ketcham, as one of West Fraser's founders, has been involved in the Company's financial affairs since it was
established in 1955. He has served as a director and member of the Audit Committee continuously since the

Company's first pubtic offering in 1986.

Janice G. Rennie

Mrs. Rennie, who hoids a Bachelor of Cornrmerce, is a Chartered Accountant. She was elected as Fellow of the
Chartered Accountants in 1988. Mrs. Rennie has chaired or been a member of several audit committees of publc
companies, including Nova Chemicals Inc., Weldwood of Canada Limited, EPCOR Utilities Inc., Canadian Hotel Income
Properties REIT and Matnkon Inc.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee has adopted a policy that sets out the pre-approval requirements related to senvices to be
performed by the Company's independent auditors. The policy provides that the Committee will annually resview proposed
audit, audit-related, x and other senvices (to be submitted by the Chief Rnancial Officer and the independent auditor),

and will provide general approval of described services, usually including specific maximum fee amounts.

Unless a service has received general pre-approval, it will require specific pre-approval by the Committee. The
Committee is permitted to delegate pre-approval authority to any of its members. The Committee reports on the pre-

approval process to the full Board of Directors from time to time.

Fees Paid to Auditors (S thousands) Table XI
Audit-Related
Audit Fees! Fees?® Tax Fees? All Other®
2006 230 173 a17 36
2005 875 202 260 82

1. Represents actual and estmated fees related to fiscal year ends.

2. Reprasents fees invoiced in the fiscal year,

3. For assurance and related services that arae reasonably related to the performance of the audit but are not reported as “Aucit Fees”.
Material Contracts

On Novernber 29, 2006, West Fraser entered into an agreement to acquire 13 sawmills for approximately USS 325
miliion, subject to certain post-closing adjustrments. The transaction will include the assignment of mutti-year market
price log supply agreements which are expected to provide approximately 15% of the acquired mills’ current
reguirements and the entry into and assumption of long-term agreements to sell residual wood chips to the seller of
the sawmills at market prices, The transaction will result in the termination of certain pulp supply contracts which were

entered into as part of West Fraser's 2004 acquisition of Weldwood.




In 2006, the Company sold its interest in one of two power purchase agreements to which it was a party and
concurrently acquired a greater interest in the remaining agreement. This was intended to allow West Fraser to

substantially hedge a constant rate of power output untit 2020, at which time the agreement expires.

In 2005, the Company refinanced its operating credt facility, changing from a $350 milion 2-year term to a $500 million
S-year term. In 2006, West Fraser obtained a commitment to increase the operating facility to $600 million with a new
maturity in 2012 and to create a 3-year term facility in the amount of $100 milion to provide funding for the purchase

of the 13 U.S. sawmills. Definitive loan documents are expected to be entered into during the first quarter of 2007.

Legal Proceedings

As a condition to the implementation of the SLA 2006, both the United States and Canadian governments agreed to
terminate all outstanding litigation, which covered proceedings before the World Trade Organization, the North
American Free Trade Agreement, U.S. agencies and LS. courts, including the West Fraser de minimus dumping rate
case. There are a number of outstanding proceedings and appeals related to the recent softwood lumber dispute that
are expected to be discontinued or terminated.

Incorporation by Reference
The sections of the Company's Annual Report entitled “Management's Discussion & Analysis™ and "Six-Year Review”

are incorporated herein by reference.

Additional Information

When securities of the Company are in the course of distribution pursuant to a short form prospectus, or a prefminary
short form prospectus has been filed in respect of a distribution of its securities, the Company will, upon request,
provide to any person:

{a) one copy of this Annual Information Form, together with one copy of any document, or of the pertinent pages
of any document, incorporated by reference in this Annual Information Forms;

{b) one copy of the comparative consclidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2006, together with the accompanying auditors' report, and one copy of each interim consolidated financial
staternent of the Company prepared after December 31, 2006:

{c) one copy of the Information Circular for the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on April 25, 2007;
and

(d) one copy of each other document that is incorporated by reference in the short form prospectus or the

preliminary short form prospectus and is not described above.

Additional information, including directors' and officers' remuneration and indebtedness, principal holders of the
Company's securities and options to purchase its securities, is contained in the Company's Information Circular.
Additional financial infformation is provided in the Company's comparative consolidated financial statements for the

year ended December 31, 2006.

Copies of this Annual Information Form and the documents incomorated by reference therein, the comparative
consolidated financial statements of the Company (including the auditors' report) for the year ended December 31, 2006,
each consoldated interim financial statement prepared after December 31, 2006, the Company's Information Circular and
Annual Report may be obtained at any time upon request from the Company, provided the Company may require the
payment of a reasonable charge if the request is made by a person who is not a security holder of the Company.

This Annual Information Form, the Company's Annual Report and additional information conceming the Company may
also be obtained on the web site: www.westfraser.com and on the Systern for Electronic Docurnent Analysis and
Retrieval ("SEDAR"} at www.sedar.com.
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2006 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the annual
audited consolidated financial staternents and accompanying notes. The annual audited
financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles and are expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated.
Additional information relating to the Company, including the Company’s Annual

Information Form is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

This report of management’s discussion and analysis contains historical information,
descriptions of current circumstances and statements about potential future
developments. The latter, which are forward-looking statements, are presented to
provide reasonable guidance to the reader but the accuracy of these statements
depends on a number of assumptions and is subject to various risks and uncertainties.
These statements are not guaranteed by the Company and actual outcomes and results
will depend on a number of factors that could affect the ability of the Company to
execute its business plans, including those matters described under “Risks &
Uncertainties”, and such outcomes and results may differ materially from those
anticipated or projected. Accordingly, readers should exercise caution in relying upon
forward-locking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise

these forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.

Throughout this report, reference is made to EBITDA (defined as operating earnings plus
amortization of property, plant, equipment and timber, plus restructuring charges), which
the Company censiders to be a key performance indicator. EBITDA is not a generally
accepted earnings measure and should not be considered as an altemative to eamings
or cash flows as determined in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. As there is no standardized method of calculating EBITDA, the
Company's use of the term may not be directly comparable with similarty titted measures

used by other companies.

The information in this report is as at February 15, 2007, unless otherwise indicated.




2006 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

U.S. Sawmill Acquisition

COn November 28, 2006, West Fraser Timber Co. Lid. (the "Company”™ or "West Fraser”} entered into an agreement
with International Paper Company (“IP"} to acquire 13 sawmilis tor approximately US §325 milion, subject to certain
post-closing adjustments. U.S. regulatory approval was granted January 4, 2007 and the transaction, which is subject

to customary conditions, is expected to close at the end of March, 2007.

The 13 mills, which are located in North and South Carolina, Georgia, Flonida. Alabama, Arkansas and Texas, employ
approximately 2,200 people and have a combined annual production capacity of approximately 1.8 bilion board feat
of southern yellow pine lumber. At closing, West Fraser is expected to become the second largest lumber producer

in North America with combined Canadian and U.S. production capacity of approximately 6.2 bilion board feet.

The transaction will include the assignment of multi-year market price log supply agreements which are expected to
provide, in aggregate, approximately 15% of the acquired mills' current requirements. West Fraser will aiso enter into
or assume long-term agreements to sell residual wood chips at market prices. The transaction will result in the
termination of two pulp supply contracts for 170,000 tonnes per year, which were entered into as part of West Fraser's
2004 acquisition of Weldwood of Canada Limited {*Weldwood™). The termination of the contracts is not expected to

have a material impact on West Fraser.

Financing, Synergies and Current Operations

West Fraser intends to finance the acquisition with cash on hand and available lines of credit. In assessing the
acquisition, West Fraser established US $23 million in annual pre-tax synergies as a target to be achieved by the end
of the third year after closing. Synergies are expected to be achieved by implementing best practices and by

centralizing U.S. sales and administrative offices.

Activities to Date

Since the announcement of the transaction, West Fraser has established an organizational structure t© manage the
U.S. operations and announced plans to consolidate U.S. administrative and sales functions in Memphis, Tennessee.
The Company is also carrying out the planning phase of the systems integration process, although activities will be

limited until after closing.

Softwood Lumber Agreement

On July 1, 2006, the Canadian and U.S. govermments agreed to the basic terms of a Softwood Lumber Agreement (the
“SLA 2006"), which came into force on October 12, 2006. Under the agreement, the U.S, terminated the existing duty
deposit requirements on Canadian softwood lumber shipments to the U.S. and agreed to retum all duty deposits made to
date, with interest. in retum. Canadian producers were required to pay approximately 31 billion, which equated te 18.06%
of the retumed duties plus interest received up to October 12, 2006 (the "Special Charge”), to the Canadian govemment
to be forwarded to the LS. government for further distribution, Parties in Canada and the U.S. agreed to withdraw all related
litigation and the LS. industry agreed to waive its rights to file any other proceedings while the SbA 2006 is in effect.

Also under the agreement, the Canadian provinces were required to choose one of two options with respect to umber
shipments to the U.S.: to pay to the Canadian government either a variable export tax based on price or a lower
variable export tax but subject to a2 quota on total shipments. B.C. and Alberta elected the export tax only option, which

resulls in West Fraser’s Canadian lumber operations being subject to the following export taxes:

Table XN
Prevailing price’ Export Tax (%)
Cver US $355 Nil
US €336 — $355 5
US $316 — $335 10
US $315 or under 15

1, Based cn Random Lengths Framing Lumber Composite Price (the “Raference Price’).
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Also, if monthly shipments from specified regions in B.C. or from Alberta, as export tax only regions, exceed a certain
trigger volume as defined in the SLA 2006, a surge mechanism (the “Surge”) will cause a 50% increase in the

applicable export tax rate for that month,

From the date the SLA 2006 came into force until February 15, 2007 shipments to the U.S. from B.C. and Alberta
resufted in a 15% export tax being incurred. The tax rate wil be re-determined monthly based on a four-week average
Reference Price that is published 21 days prior to the start of any given month. The Surge will be calculated monthly

based on trailing U.S. lumber consumption.

Fourth Quarter Results
Tabie Xl
Q4 - 2006 Q4 - 2005

Production

Lumber -— MMfbim 910 1,011
MDF — MMsf (3/4" basis) 67 75
Plywood — MMsf (3/8" basis) 172 176
VL — Mcf 855 737
BCTMP — Mtonnes 138 136
NBSK — Mtonnes 141 153
Linerboard and Kraft Paper — Mtonnes n7 13
Newsprint — Mtonnes 31 29
Shipments

LLumber — MMfbm 1,000 1,004
MDF — MMsf (3/4” basis) 55 74
Phywood — MMsf (3/8" basis) 163 162
LVL — Mcf 526 733
BCTMP — Mtonnes 108 165
NBSK — Mtornes 138 149
Linerboard and Kraft Paper — Mtonnes 114 120
Newsprint — Mtonnes 29 29

Sales — $ millions

Lumber 358 443
Panels 102 120
Pulp & Paper 267 269
Total 727 83z

Operating earnings — $ milions

Lumber 354 35
Panels (5) 2
Pulp & Paper 19 (12)
Corporate & Other (10) 6
Total 358 n
EBITDA — $ millions a27 95
Amortization — $ millions (69) (64)
Operating eamings — $ millions 358 i
Interest income {expense) — % millions 43 [e[)]
Exchange loss on long-term debt — $ millions (14) —
Other income {expense) — $ milions a6 (4}
Provision for income taxes — $ millions (137) {8)
Earnings — $ milllions 296 9

SCDN/$US — average 1.14 117




Average Benchmark Prices (in US $, except Plywood) Q4 - 2006 Q4 - 2005

2 x 4 random length SPF (per ivibm)’ 245 327
SYP #2 West 2 x 4 (per Mfbm)? 267 /18
Plywood (per Msf 3/8" basis)® Cdn $ 367 389
MDF {per Msf 3/4" basis)* 462 407
Newsprint {per tonne)® 654 627
NBSK (per tonne)® 770 637
Linerboard {per tonne)’ 568 468
Sources:

1. Random Lengths - 2 x 4, #2 & Better - Net FOB mil.

2. Random Lengths - 2 x 4 - Net FOB mill Westside.

3. Crow’s Market Report - Defvered Toronto.

4. Resource nformation Systerns, Inc. - MOF westem U.S. - Net FOB ma,

5. Resource Information Systems, Inc. - LS. defiverad 48.8 gram newsprint.

6. Resource Information Systemns, Inc. - LS, kst price, delivered U.S.

7. Pulp & Paper Week - Unbleached linerboard kraft, East.

Selected Quarterly Information

(S milions, except eamings per share ("EPS™) amounts which are in $) Table XIV

Q4a-06 Q3-06 Q2-06 a1-06 Q4-05 Q3-05 Q2-05 an-05
Sates 727 BOS 888 202 832 890 953 902
Eamings 296 {8) 104 6 9 18 38 43
Basic EPS — % 6.93 {0.19) 2.43 0.14 Q.20 0.42 0.88 1.00
Diuted EPS — $ 6.87 {0.19) 2.41 0,14 0.20 0.42 0.88 0.99

Operating eamings for the fourth quarter of 2006 include $387 million of duty refunds recorded as the result of the
settlement of the softwood lumber dispute. Fourth guarter results, excluding the duty refund, would have been an
operating loss of $29 milion compared to operating eamings of $31 million in the fourth guarter of 2005. The decrease
was mainly due to lower Jumber and plywood prices, offset partially by higher puip and paper prices, lower natural gas
costs and lower export taxes in 2006 compared to duties in 2005.

Interest expense for the quaner was 57 milion compared to $10 milion for the fourth quarter of 2005. The decrease
was due to interest eamed on cash deposits and lower debt levels. In addition, softwood lumber duty refund interest

of $50 million was recorded in earnings in the quarter.

During the quarter, West Fraser sold its interest in the Bums Lake and Decker Lake sawmills and associated harvesting
rights for net proceeds of $79 million, subject to adjustment, resulting in a gain of $22 million. In addition. logging

operations in Hinton, AB were sold for $2 milion (see note 5 to the accompanying financial statements).

The change in value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. doflar in the fourth quarter resulted in an exchange loss
of 14 milion on the Company’s U.S. denominated long-term debt. Also, other income included a $19 million gain on
the translation of U.S. dollar cash, receivables and U.S. operations, compared to a $4 million translation ioss in the

fourth quarter of 2005.

During the fourth quarter, West Fraser reallocated a portion of the gain on the sale of a power purchase agreement
to better reflect historic consumption of electricity. Accordingly, $10 million was transferred from the pulp and paper

segment of which $8 milion was attributed to the panel segment and $2 million to the lumber segment.

Excluding the $387 million duty refund, lumber operations had an aperating loss of $33 milion compared to operating
eamings of $35 million in the fourth quarter of 2005. The $68 million reduction was primarily due to lower lumber prices
offset partially by lower export laxes in 2006 compared to duties in 2005. Lower production volumes in the fourth
quarter of 2006 compared to the fourth quarter of 2005 were primarily due to the disposal of the Company’s interest
in the Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills on October 31, 2006,
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Operating earnings of the panel segment were $7 million lower in the quarter compared to the fourth quarter of 2005
partially due to lower plywood prices, higher plywood production costs resulling from operating issues and higher log
costs. MDF prices were higher during the guarter than in the fourth quarter of 2005, but that benefit was partially offset

by lower production and shipments.

Pulp and paper operating eamings were higher by $31 milion in the fourth quarter of 2006 than in the fourth quarter
of 2005, mostly due to price increases and lower natural gas costs offset partially by increased fibre costs and
decreased shipment volumes for BCTMP. Fourth quarter NBSK production declined mostly as a result of the closure

during the quarter of the #1 pulp machine at Hinton Pulp,

Annual Results

Revenue and Earmings Comparison ($ milions, except as stated) Table XV

Year ended Decermber 31 2006 2005 2004

Sales by Segment

Lumber 1,756 2,021 1,475

Panels 475 51 284

Pulp & Paper 1,095 1,045 641

Total 3,326 3.577 2,400
EBITDA 682 447 442

Amortization (252) (255} {154)
Restructuring charge (38) _ -
Operating eamings 3a2 192 288

Operating Eamings by Segment

Lumber 400 206 298
Panels 13 27 45
Pulp & Paper (6} (30} {15)
Corporate & Other (15) (1} (40)
Total 392 192 288

Less certain unusual items:;

Duty refund (387) - —

Restructuring charge 38 _ e
Adjusted Operating Earmings’ 43 192 288
Eamings 398 108 212
Basic EPS — $ 9.31 2.52 5.75
Diluted EPS — $ 9.23 2.49 5.36
Cash dividends per share — $ 0.56 0.56 0.56
Total assets 4,018 3,634 3,827
Long-term debt 628 628 B86
$SCDN / $US — average 1.13 1.21 1.30

1. Adjusted Qperating Earnings refers to tatal operating earnings less certain unusuat itamns. Adjusted Operating Earnings s not a generaly
accepted eamings measura and should not be considered as an altemative to operating earnings as determined in accordance with Canadian
generally accepled accounting principles. The Compary's use of this term may not be directly comparatide with simiarty tiled measures used
by other companies.




On December 31, 2004, the Company acquired Weldwood through its wholly-owned subsidiary, West Fraser Mills Ltd.
West Fraser's 2006 and 2005 results include the earnings of the acquired Weldwood operations, whereas the 2004

resulis do not.

Adjusted Operating Eamings in 2006 declined by $149 milkon from 2005 and by $245 miillion from 2004. These decines
were primarily due to lower lumber and plywood prices and the stronger Canadian dollar but were partially offset by
lower duty and export tax payments and higher MDF and pulp and paper prices. In addition, West Fraser’s share
option recovery was $1 miflion in 2006 compared to a recovery of $6 million in 2005 and an expense of $25 milion in
2004. The share option expense fluctuations are primarily due to changes in West Fraser's year-end share price

compared to previous years.

Interest expense of $38 milion was $10 million lower than in 2005 due to lower debt levels, interest earned on cash
held on deposit and deferred financing charges of $3 milion expensed in 2005 related to a debt prepayment. Interest
expense of $16 milion in 2004 was lower than both 2006 and 2005, primarily due to increased debt levels related to
financing the Weldwood acquisition.

The change in value of the Canadian dollar relative to the ULS. dollar resutted in an exchange loss of less than $1 million
in 2006 on the Company's U.S. denominated long-term debt compared toe an exchange gain of $14 milion in 2005
and an exchange gain of $27 million in 2004. Other income included a $12 million gain on the translation of U.S. dotiar
cash, receivables and U.S. operations, compared to a $15 million translation loss in 2005 and an $8 million translation

loss in 2004, Other income also included gains on the sale of property, plant, equipment and timber and other items.
During 2006 the following significant one-time items were included in eamings:

*  The Hinton Pulp mill restructuring plan resulted in a writedown of $35 milion of property, plant, equiprment and

timber and a $3 million charge for other restructuring costs.

+ The SLA 2006 resulted in West Fraser recording duty refund income of $387 mition and interest income of $50

rmillon.

+ The sale of one of two power purchase agreements resulted in a gain of $62 million. Concurrently West Fraser

acquired a greater interest in the remaining agreement for $86 miflion.

* The sale of West Fraser's interest in the Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills and the related timber harvesting

rights resulted in a gain of $22 million.

* The receipt of compensation for timber rights expropriated by the Province of British Columbia under the

govemmment's Forestry Revitalization Plan resulted in a gain of $14 milion.

The effective tax rate applicable to the Company for 2006 and 2005 was lower than the statutory rate primarily due
to reductions during 2006 in federal and Alberta tax rates and the reduction during 2005 in the British Columbia tax
rate. The 2006 provision for income tax was an expense of $124 milion compared to the 2005 expense of $42 million
and the 2004 expense of $85 million. Note 20 to the accompanying consolidated financial staternents provides a

reconciiation from the statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rate.

Total tax and tax-like levies and charges are shown in Table XVi. With the exception of income tax, these payments

do not vary directly with profitability.
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Tax and Tax-Like Levies ($ millions) Tabie XVi
Year ended December 31 2006 2005
Current income tax 182 63
Corporation capital tax — 4
Lumber export tax 17 —
Canada pension plan 14 14
Employment insurance 6 7
Property tax 24 23
Social service tax 10 12
Stumpage & royalties 129 149
Workers compensation 1 13
Other 3 3
Total 396 288
2006 OPERATING RESULTS
l.umber
Table XVl
2006 2005
Production =- SPF — MMftwn 3,797 3,824
Production — SYP — MMfbm 289 388
Shipments — SPF — MMibm 3,889 3.816
Shipments — SYP — MMfbm 386 374
Wood chip production — SPF - QDTs 1,908 1,960
— SYP - green tons a37 427
Sales — % millions 1,756 2,021
EBITDA — § millions 518 328
EBITDA margin — % 28 16
Operating eamings — $ millions 400 206
Less duty refund — $ miflions (387) —
Adjusted Operating Earnings' — $ milions 13 206
Capital expenditures — $ millions 123 147
Benchmark Price
— SPF #2 & Better 2 x 4 (per Mibm)? US & 296 353
— SYP #2 West 2 x 4 (per Mibm)? US § 330 422

1. Adiusted Operating Earnings refers to totat operating earnings less cenain unusual items. Adjusted Operating Eamings is not a generally
accepted eamings measure and should not be considered as an alternative to operating earnings as determined in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles. The Company's use of this term may not be directly comparable with simiarty tived measures used

by other companes.
Source: Random Lengths - 2 x 4, #2 & Better - Net FOB mill.
Saurce: Randorn Lengths - 2 x 4 - Net FOB mill Westside.

P

Adjusted Operating Eamings declined by $193 million from 2005 primarily due to lower lumber prices and the stronger

Canadian dollar. The decline was partially offset by lower duties and export taxes and lower sawlog costs from reduced

stumpage rates.




During 2006, West Fraser sold its interest in the Burns Lake and Decker Lake sawmills and the related timber
harvesting rights located in British Columbia for net proceeds of $78 milion, subject to adjustment, resulting in a gain
of $22 milion. These divestilures were required under the agreement with the Canadian Cornpetition Commissioner
related to the Company's acquisition of Weldwood. A road maintenance business and logging operations located in

Hinton, AB were also sold for proceeds of $2 million.

West Fraser reached an agreement with the Province of British Columbia for compensation for timber nghts
expropriated by the Province under its Forestry Revitalization Plan. The Company received $29 milion from the
Province in compensation for the foss of approximatety 1,275,000 m® of AAC from its replaceable forest tenures and

received an additional $2 milion for certain related assets. A gain of $14 milion was inciuded in eamings.

Table XVIll outlines the softwood lumber duties expensed each quarter at the then prevaling exchange rate. The
cumulative duty expense since 2002 exceeded the gross cuty refund receved by the Company by $75 million due to
the stronger Canadian dollar, The duty refund was recorded net of the Special Charge.

Softwood Lumber Duties ($ millions) Table XViill
[=)] Q2 Q3 a4 Total
2006
Duty expense 22 22 17 — 61
Gross refund — — —_ 472) {(a72)
Less Special Charge e - — 85 B85S
Net refund — - _ {387) {387)
Total 2006 22 22 17 (387) (326)
2005 40 43 39 29 15t
2004 3 42 52 31 156
2003 23 26 <1l 32 Mz
2002 4 {13) 29 24 42

1. After 2001 reversals.,

West Fraser's sawmills operated efficiently during the year despite primarily processing lower quality mountain pine
beetle (“MPB™) affected logs in B.C. Log quality resulted in reduced lumber recovery and increased volumes of lower
grade lumber. However, West Fraser plans to continue to upgrade and operate its mills in a manner that reduces the

negative effects of processing such logs.

The Company experienced railcar shortages in the eary part of 2006. Railcar supply improved over the summer
months and the sawmills were able to recover the lost shipmert volumes, However, inconsistent rail service to West

Fraser's operations remains a significant issue.

Capital expenditures for the year were 5123 miflion compared to $147 milion in 2005. Major expenditures incurred in
2006 were for the construction of the new Quesnel sawmil, improved energy systems to reduce natural gas

consumption and various projects dealing with processing of the MPB atfected timber.

The new sawmillin Quesnet commenced operations at the end of Cctober 2006 and in January 2007 began operating
on a three-shift basis. The sawmil has a capacity of approximately 600 MMfbm per year. Additional planer capacity

will be added to the Quesnel operations to handle the increased volume of lumber to be produced.

In the early part of 2006 lumber prices weakened due to declining U.8. housing starts. The SPF benchmark price ended
the year at US $265 per Mfbm, down from LS $360 per Mfbm in the earty part of 2006. Southemn yellow pine prices, which
were even more volatie, ended the year at US $280 per Mfbm, down by more than US $140 per Mfbm since the earty
part of 20086. In 2008, the Japanese lumber market showed improvement over 2005 for both price and volume.
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West Fraser's outlook for 2007 assumes a continued slowdown of housing starts in the United States for the first half
of the year with some improvement expected in the second half of the year. Lumber prices are not tkely to recover

until the housing market begins to improve.

Stumpage
tn 2006, the B.C. govermment enacted a new timber pricing system for the B.C. Interior under which stumpage is now
based on timber sales data derived from publicly auctioned timber rather than on the Statistics Canada lumber and

wood chip price indices.

Also during 2006. the Province of British Columbia changed the way logs are graded and stumpage is calkculated for
beetle-affected trees. The changes were designed to be revenue neutral to the Province but changed the distribution
of stumpage across the B.C. Interior. Generally timber stands that were heavily damaged by the MPB incurred

increased stumpage with a corresponding reduction in stumpage in less severely damaged or unaffected stands.

Under the current system in Alberta, stumpage is principally tied to product prices. In 2006, the Alberta government
introduced a new stumpage schedule for sawlogs which reflects updated industry costs. The Province also began to
charge stumpage as logs are delivered to the mill rather than as they are processed, which has had the effect of

accelerating the timing of stumpage payments.

Mountain Pine Beetle

In B.C.'s Intericr, the MPB infestation has been spreading since 1994. Recert surveys indicate that approximately 582
miflion m? of lodgepole pine in B.C. has been affected by the MPB. The Quesnel, Prince George, Wiliams Lake, 100
Mile House, Lakes and Morice TSAs continue to be the most heavily atfected by the MPB. These are all areas in which
West Fraser has operations. The Dawson Creek TSA, where the Company also operates, currently has a moderate

level of infestation,

The Province of British Columbia has increased the AAC of timber tenures by approximately 16 milion m?® in the
northern and central areas of B.C. from pre-infestation levels. West Fraser estimates that approximately 85% of the

timber currently supplied to its B.C. Interior operations is from beetle-affected stands.

The long-term effect of the MPB infestation on West Fraser's operations is not clear. Preliminary analyses by the
Province indicate that the AAC in the B.C. Interior may be reduced by 20% to 25% below pre-beetle AAC levels beyond
2015 or by as much as 50% from current elevated harvest levels. i is also expected that the grade and volume of
lumber that can be recovered from the beetle-affected logs will diminigh with time. However, the timing and extent of
these reductions on West Fraser's timber supply, and the elfect on lumber recovery and grade depends on a variety

of tactors and cannot be reasonably determined.

In 2005, the MPB appeared along the eastem slopes of the Rocky Mountains, including within the Company’s Hinton,
AB FMA. In 2006 there was a flight of the beetle into northwestern Alberta, affecting an estimated one to two milion
trees anc current survey activities are expected to find additional infestation, The Alberta govermment is taking
proactive action to control the spread of the MPB and to reduce the area of stands at risk for attack. An advisory group
macde up of representatives from the provincial and local governments, industry, aboriginal groups, academia and
ervironmental organizations is advising the Alberta govemment on strategies to contain and prevent further spread of
the infestation. Although the hardest hit areas in Alberta are to the north and west of Wesl Fraser's operating areas,
all of the Company's Alberta operations are shifting barvest activities into pine stands which have been identified as
being at high risk of infestation.




Panels
Table XIX
2006 2005
Plywood
Production — MMsf — 3/8” basis 728 72
Shipments — MMsf — 3/8" basis 721 713
MDF
Production — MMsf — 3/4” basis 288 294
Shipments — MMsf — 3/4” basis 281 290
LvVL
Production — Mcf 3,000 3,179
Shipments -~ Mcf 2,710 3,134
Sales — $ milions 475 511
EBITDA — & millions 53 B5
EBITDA margin — % " 13
Operating earnings — $ miflions 13 27
Capital expenditures — $ millions 20 24
Benchmark price  — Plywood (per Msf 3/8” basis)' Cdn $ 366 387
— MDF (per Msf 3/4” basis)? US $ 448 M4

1. Source: Crow's Market Report - Deliverad Toronto,

2. Sowrce: Rasource Information Systems, Inc. - MDF Western U.S. = Net FOB mill.

Operating earnings were $13 million for the year compared to $27 million for 2005. The decrease was primarily due to
lower plywood prices, higher plywood production costs resulting from operating issues and higher log costs. In
addition, operating eamings were reduced by lower LVL shipments due to a weakening LVL market. The increase in

the MDF price was partially offset by lower production and shipment volumes.

Plywood
Combined production and shipments at West Fraser's plywood plants increased marginally in 2006 over 2005 levels.

Price erosion for plywood was less severe than lumber due to reduced production capacity in Canada and continuing
strong demand in the Canadian market. Although West Fraser was able to sell its production in 2008, it experienced

a slowdown in sates in the last few months of the year.

MDF
Production was lower than in 2005 due to market driven product mix changes and voluntary power-related
curtailments during periods of high electricity prices.

MDF prices rose during the first nine months of the year, but began 1o decline in the fourth quarter. The MDF business
continues to face increasing competition from offshore manufacturing of both MDF panels and MDF products such as
fumiture. However, the North American laminated flooring market, which is key for West Fraser's MDF business,

continued to grow during 2006.

LVL
Various operational difficulties and production curtaiments due to deteriorating market conditions resulted in lower
production in 2006 compared to 2005, Union certification of the hourly employees of the Rocky Mountain House LVL

facility occurred in March 2006 and contract negotiations with the union are ongeing.

Sales volumes began to decline in the third quarter of 2006 and continued to fall by a further 16% in the fourth quarter.
Demand for this structural product is expected to pick up along with cther building materials when the U.S. housing

market improves.
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Pulp & Paper

Table XX

2006 2005

Sates — § milions 1,095 1,045
EBITDA — $ millicns 123 62
EBITDA margin — % H 6
Operating loss — $ millions (6) (30)
Capitat expenditures — $ milions 66 47

Operating earnings for the pufp and paper segment improved by $24 milion despite the $38 millien restructuring
charge for the Hinton Pulp mill. Higher pulp and paper pricing, improved operations at the Kitimat mill and fower natural

gas prices were the primary reasons for the improvement, which was partially offset by the stronger Canadian dollar.

The Company sold its interest in one of two power purchase agreements to which it was a party for proceeds of $68
milion while concurrently acquiring a greater interest in the remaining agreement for $86 million. These transactions
were accounted for as a sale and purchase respectively, resulting in a gain of $62 million of which the pulp and paper
segment recorded $51 milion. The increased ownership in the remaining agreement provides West Fraser with greater
participation in the power purchase agreernent related to a newer and lower cost power plant. This provides a more

consistent energy hedge and substantially protects its energy position through 2020 for most of its Alberta operations.

Pulp’ Table XXI

2008 2005
Production — NBSK -— Mtonnes 543 581
Shipments — NBSK — Mtonnes 565 570
Production — BCTMP — Mtonnes 561 552
Shipments — BCTMP — Monnes 572 550
Benchmark price — NBSK (per tonne)? US $ 7 646

1. For Cariboo Pulp & Paper, includes West Fraser's share,

2. Source: Resource Informabion Systems, Inc. - ULS. st price defvered U.S.

Capitat spending at the four pulp mills was $35 milion in 2006 compared to $25 miflion in 2005, Projects in 2006
included various upgrades at Quesnel River Pulp ("QRP") and the upgrade of the #2 pulp machine at Hinton Pulp mil,
which is expected to be completed in 2007. In addition, there were several other productivity improvement projects

completed in the year.

NBSK
Combined production at the two NBSK rnils was 543 Mtonnes compared to 581 Mtonnes in 2005, The lower production
was a result of extended maintenance shutdowns mainly as a result of additional maintenance work, the closure of the

old puip ne at the Hinton Pulp mil in the fourth quarter and various operating issues throughout the year.

The Cariboo Pulp mill's 2006 annual maintenance shutdown and startup was complicated by a faiure of a tank in the
bleach plant. This event idled the bleach plant for approximatety 20 days. During this time approximately 15,000 tonnes
of unbleached kraft pulp were produced, of which 50% was to West Fraser’s account. The production and sale of the

unbleached pulp mitigated the losses associated with the downtime,

The woodroom at the Hinton Pulp mill was permanently closed in the fourth quarter as part of the announced
restructuring of that operation. In addition, the shutdown of the smaller #1 pulp machine commenced near the end of
the year. The %20 million upgrade of the remaining pulp machine is expected to be completed by the end of the second
quarter of 2007. After completion of the upgrade, the annual capacity of the mill will be 350,000 tonnes reflecting a net
reduction of approximately 70,000 tonnes. In 2006, West Fraser recorded a writedown of $35 million of property, plant,
equipment and timber and a charge of $3 million for other costs related to the restructuring plan.




The agreemert to purchase 13 sawmils in the southem United States includes the termination of two 10-year pulp
supply agreements for 170.000 tonnes per year that were entered into as part of the Weldwood transaction. The
recuction of 70,000 tonnes per year of pulp production at Hinton and a strong market and customer base are

expected to cffset the effect of the termination of the contracts.

North Armerican NBSK pulp prices quoted in U.S. dollars increased significantly in 2006 resulting in higher sales refums
despite the stronger Canadian dollar. A significant reduction i North American NBSK pulp capacity was the primary
reason for the improved market conditions. West Fraser expects NBSK pulp prices to remain strong during the first

quarter of 2007 due to supply recuctions.

BCTMP

BCTMP production increased to 561 Mtonnes from 552 Mlonnes in 2005, with both the QRP and Slave Lake pulp mills
achieving record production tor the year. QRP increased production by 3% as a resutt of several productivity initiatives
completed during the year. Despite voiuntary power-retated curtailments during periods of high electricity prices of
approximately 5,000 tonnes in each of 2005 and 2006, Slave Lake Pulp established a fifth consecutive annuat

production record.

Dermand for BCTMP was strong for the first nine months of the year, allowing for higher shipmenis compared to 2005,
although demand slowed in the fourth quarter of 2006. West Fraser expects BCTMP prices in 2007 may be under

pressure due to capacity additions.

Linerboard and Kraft Paper Tabile XXII

2006 2005
Production — Mtonnes 459 449
Shipments — Mtonnes 467 458

Benchmark price — Linerboard (per tonne)' US $ 554 472

1. Source; Pulp & Paper Week - Unbieached linerboard keaft, East, -

Improvements made in the past few years at the Kitimat mil have resulted in an increase in capacity from 450 Mtonnes
to 470 Mtonnes, and a 2006 annua! production record of 459 Mtonnes. Production costs declined in the year as a

result of lower fibre and natural gas costs and productivity improvements realized in the year.

In 2005, West Fraser began building an electrical cogeneration plant at the Kitimat mil, designed to generate
approximately 20 megawatts of etectricity. The project was completed in January 2007 and after some construction
issues is expected to improve production costs for this operation. Total capital spending for Kitimat was $30 million

compared te $16 milion in 2005,

Linerboard markets strengthened throughout 2006 primarily due to capacity reductions, mainly in North America.
Benchmark prices denominated in U.S. dollars averaged approximately US $82 higher than the average for 2005.
Althotgh the stronger Canadian dollar offset much of this increase, the Company’s Canadian milf net returns for
finerboard increased 6%. As a result of current North American capacity reductions and continued demand, West
Fraser expects nerboard prices to remain near current levels for at least the first haf of the year with the annual

average slightly higher than 2006.

Kraft paper prices were relatively unchanged during the first nine months of 2006 but strengthened significantly
towards the end of the year. In Canadian dollars, mill net realizations were unchanged from 2005. West Fraser expects

kraft paper prices to remain strong throughout 2007
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Newsprint (West Fraser's share) Table XX

2006 2005
Production — Mtonnes 125 130
Shiprments — Mtonnes 123 129
Benchmark price — {per tonne)' US § 655 600

1. Source: Resource Information Systems, Inc. - U.S. delivered 4B.8 gram nawsprint.

ANC's newsprint production was 4% lower in 2006 compared to the previous year due to voluntary power-refated
curtailments during pericds of high electricity prices, an increase in production of lower basis weight paper and
operational issues. Power-related curtailments resutted in a production reduction of 3,500 tonnes in 2006 compared

to 2,000 tonnes in 2005.

North American newsprint demand continued to decline in 2006 primarily due to the reduction in U.S. daity hewspaper
consumption. Newsprint capacity closures have not kept pace with this lower consumption and prices declined during
the fourth quarter of 2006. West Fraser expects that newsprint prices will be lower in 2007 than in 2006 as newsprint

demand is expected to decline further.

Significant Management Judgments Affecting Financiat Results

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. and to select
accounting policies that affect the amounts reported in the financial staterments. The significant accounting policies
followed by West Fraser are disclosed in Note 1 to the Company's audited consolidated financial statements. The

following tems are the judgments considered most significant.

Asset Valuation

West Fraser believes that the frequency of technological changes in its manufacturing processes should be reflected
in its choice of amorlization pernods. Accordingly, West Fraser amortizes its manufacturing equipment and machinery
over periods ranging from 10 to 20 years, with sawmill machinery and equipment averaging 10 to 12 years. Timber
rights are amaortized over periods of up to 60 years. In addition to the appropriateness of the amortization periods,
West Fraser periodically reviews estimated future cash flows from its assets as pan of its consideration of whether the

carrying value of the assets is appropriate.

Reforestation Obligation and Other Asset Retirement Obligations

West Fraser's Canadian operations are required by provincial regulations to camry out reforestation to ensure re-
establishment of the forest after harvesting. Reforested areas must be tended for a period sufficient to ensure that
they are well-established. The time to meet regulatory requirements depends on a variety of factors, but in West
Fraser's operating areas, it usually spans 12 to 15 years. The estimated total cost of reforestation is accrued as

harvesting takes place. These estimates are reviewed by the Company at least annualy, and adjusted i appropriate.

West Fraser records the estimated fair value of a liability for other asset retirement obligations, such as landiill closures,
in the period when a reasonabie estirnate of fair value can be made. The fair value of the kability is added to the carrying
amount of the associated asset and amortized over its usefut life. The lability is accreted over time through charges
to eamings and is reduced by actual costs of setlement. Payments relating to landfill closure and site remediation

costs are expected to occur at periods ranging up o 20 years.

Definred Benefit Plan Assumptions

West Fraser maintains defined benefit pension plans for many of its employees. The provision of future funding
requirements and the expense for accounting purposes for such plans depends on assumptions made by the
Company, as well as on actual retums experienced on the pension fund assets. The Company makes assumplions it

believes to be conservative.




Defined Benefit Pension Plan Assumptions Table XXV

2006 2005
Discount rate 5.25% 5.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of increase in future compensation 3.25% 3.25%

Change in Accounting Policies

Share-based Compensation

Effective December 31, 2006, West Fraser adopted the new provision of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants’ ("CICA™) Emerging Issues Committee for share-based compensation for directors, dfficers and
employees eligible to retire before the vesting date. Compensation expense is now recognized over the earlier of the
rnormal vesting pericd or the period from the grant date to the date the employee becomes eligible to retire. Pursuant
to the transition provision, the Company recorded a reduction of $1.5 million {net of income tax of $0.8 milion) to
opening 2006 retained eamings for the cumulative effect on prior years arising from this change in accounting policy.
The Company has not restated eamings of any prior period as a result of adopting this accounting change as the
Company concluded that such an impact was not material. The 2006 income statement effect of adopting this change

in policy was an increase in eamings of $1.6 milion (net of income tax of $0.8 million).

Financial Instruments

The CICA issued new accounting rutes on financial instruments, hedges and comprehensive income that will require
the Company to account for derivatives and financial assets held for trading or available for sale at fair value. Loans,
receivables and investments held to maturity will be measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. Other financial liabilities will be measured at fair value or at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
methad. The effective interest rate method establishes the discount rate which equates the estimated future cash

flows with the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

Other comprehensive income is the method used to record revenues, expenses, gains and losses on net financial
assets that are not required to be included in earnings. Foreign currency translation gains and losses on self-sustaining
foreign operations will be included in other comprehensive income. Comprehensive income is the sum of earnings for

the period plus other comprehensive income.
The Company is assessing the impact of the new rules, which are effective for the first quarter of 2007.

Translation of U.S. Operations

West Fraser has determined that upon the completion of the U.S. sawmill acquisition, its U.S. operations will become
self-sustaining. Accordingly, the Company will translate the financial statements of its 1.5, operations using the current
rate method as opposed to the temporal method currently used. Under the current rate method all assets and liabilities
are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Under the temporal method, only monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date while non-monetary items

are translated at historical exchange rates.

Under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, this change wilt be accounted for prospectivety. The
revaluation component will be included in accumutated other comprehensive income as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity. The impact of this change, assuming a December 31, 2006 application of the translation method

change, would have been an $18 milion reduction to shareholders’ equity.

Capital Structure
The combined number of Cormmon shares and Class B common shares outstanding was 42,771,937 as at December
31, 2006 (2005 - 42,756,992). The increase reflects the issuance of 14,945 Common shares pursuant to the Employee

Share Purchase Plan and the exercise of outstanding share purchase options.
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All of West Fraser's debt, other than current borrowings incurred from time to time {or the Company's joint-venture
newsprint mill, is unsecured and ranks equally in right of payment. West Fraser's public debt is rated as investment
grade by leading rating agencies. In February 2007, Moody's changed its rating from Baa2 with a negative outiook to
Baa3 with a Stable outlook, reflecting in pant its near-term view of uncertainty in the lumber market along with
increasing capacity of pulp in the southern hemisphere. The ratings from Standard & Poor's and Dominion Bond Rating
Service were unchanged from 2005 afthough Standard & Poor's changed its outlook from ‘Stable’ to ‘Negative’ in
2005, reflecting in part its view of the North American forest products industry in general.

Debt Ratings Table XXV
Agency Rating Outiook
Dominion Bond Rating Service 888 Stable
Moody's Baa3 Stable
Standard & Poor's 888 Negative

Capital Requirements and Liquidity

Summary of Financial Position ($ milions, except as otherwise indicated) Table X3Vl
As at December 31 2006 2005
Net cash' 606 18
Current assets 1,451 988
Current liabilities 830 617
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 1.7 1.6
Net debt 22 775
Shareholders' equity 2,239 1,866
Net debt to capitalization® — % 1 29

1. Net cash consists of cash and short-term investments less autstanding chegues n excess of funds on deposit.

2. Net debt (tatal debt less cash and short-term investments) divided by net debt plus shareholders” equity.

West Fraser’s cash requirements, other than for operating purposes, are primarily for interest payments, repayment
of debt, additions to property, plant, equipment and timber, acquisitions and payment of dividends. In years without a
major acquisition or debt repayment, cash on hand and cash provided by operations have nommually been sufficient to

meet these requirements,

Selected Cash Flow items ($ milions) Tabhle XDV
As at December 31 2006 2005
Operating Activities

Cash provided before working capital changes 522 266
Non-cash working capital 358 (236)
Cash provided by operating activities 880 30
Financing Activities

Debt and operating loans {166} (150)
Dividends and other (23) (23)
Cash used in financing activities {189} {173)

Investing Activities

Additions to property, plant, equipment & timber {212) {224)
Other 108 36
Cash used in investing activities {104) (188)

Change in cash 587 {331)




Non-cash working capital items in 2006, included a $174 million increase in income taxes payable and a $122 milion
ncrease in accounts payable related to the Special Charge on duty refunds. These amounts will be paid in the first

quarter of 2007. Non-cash working capital items in 2005 included a use of $244 million of cash for tax payments.

Additions to property, plant, equipment and timber in 2006 included $69 milion related to construction of the new
Quesnel sawmill compared to $46 milion in 2005. Cther investing activities include $29 million of proceeds related to
the timber take-back, and $79 milion of net proceeds from the sale of the Company’s interest in the Burns Lake and
Decker Lake sawmills and the related harvesting rights, which were partially offset by $18 milion related to the

additional investment in the power purchase agreement.

In 2005, the Company refinanced its operating credit facility, changing from a $350 milion 2-year term to a $500 miflion
5-year term. West Fraser obtained a commitment to increase the operating facility to $600 milion with a new maturity
of 2012 and to create a 3-year tern facility in the amount of $100 million to provide funding for the U.S. sawmill

acquisition.

At December 31, 2006 there were $517 million in undrawn credit facilities, West Fraser has a $125 milion debenture
that is due in November of 2007,

Contractual Obligations at December 31, 2006 (S milions)' Table XXVl

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total
Long-term debt 128 — 150 - — as? 628
Operating leases 3 2 2 1 1 1 10
Capital asset commitments 13 — — — — — 13
Total 144 2 152 1 1 351 651

1. Contractual obligations means an agreement refated to debt, leases and enforceable agreements to purchase goods or services on specified
termns, bat does not inciude reforestation cbligaticns, energy purchases under vanous agreements, accounts payable in the ordinary course
of business or contingent amounts payable.

2. Represents U.S. denominated debt of $300 milkon.

Disclosure Controls and internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

As required by Multilateral Instrument 52-109, West Fraser’'s management evaluated the effectiveness of the

Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as at December 31, 2006. Based on that evaluation, the Chief

Executive Officer (“CEO™ and the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) have concluded that such disclosure controls and

procedures are effective.

The CEQ and CFO acknowledge responsibility for the design of internal control over financial reporting ("ICFR”) as at
December 31, 2006 and confirm that in the quarter ended December 31, 2006 there were no changes in these controls

which maternially affected, or are reasonably ikely to materally affect, the Cormpany’s ICFR.

West Fraser is committed to allocate resources required to evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s ICFR, and

supports aclivities that are necessary to achieve continuing compliance with the requirements of Bill 198.
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2006 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Risks & Uncertainties

Fiuctuations in Price and Demand for Products

West Fraser's financial performance is principally dependent on the demand for and selling prices of the products it
sells. Both are subject to significant fluctuations. The markets for lumber, panels, puip, paper, wood chips and other
forest products are highly volatile and are affected by factors such as global econormic conditions, changes in industry
production capacity. changes in world invertory levels and other factors beyond the Company's control. In addition,
interest rates have a significant effect on residential construction and renovation activity, which in tum influences the

demand for and price of building materials such as lumber and phywood.

West Fraser cannot predict future market conditions, product demand and pricing or increases in costs of production
due to factors outside its control. Prolonged or severe weakness in the market for any of its principal products would

adversely affect the Company's financiat condition.

Currency Risk

Most of West Fraser's products are sold at prices that are generally based on prevailing U.S. dollar prices but the
majority of its operational costs and expenses are incured in Canadian dollars. This results in significant eamings
sensitivity to changes in the Canadian / U.S. dollar exchange rate. Also, payment terms for offshore sales may be up
1o 180 days, exposing West Fraser to the risk of exchange rate fluctuations in the period between sale and payment.
Although West Fraser does not cummently hedge its foreign exchange exposure with financial forward or option
contracts, U.S. dollar-denominated debt and operations in the U.S. provide a limited offset to the U.S. dollar exchange
exposure, During 2006, the U.S. dollar traded at between Cdn $1.18 and $1.09, with an average of $1.13 (2005 -
between $1.27 and $1.14, with an average of $1.21).

Softwood Lumber Agreement

The Company cannot predict with any certainty the export tax rate appilicable to its future lumber shipments or the
potential application or timing of the additional tax related to the Surge. The SLA 2006 has a tenmn of seven years, and
may be extended for another two years by agreement. After the initial 18 months of the term, either party may
terminate the SLA 2006 by providing not less than six months notice to the other. West Fraser cannot predict if the
SLA 2006 will be terminated prior to the expiration of its term and the future responses of the United States and

Canada following such expiration or termination are uncertain.

Availability of Fibre and Changes in Stumpage Fees

West Fraser meets a significant portion of its Canadian timber requirements through government grants of timber from
provincial ministries and is charged stumpage fees for its harvesting activities on Crown lands. Provincial governments
prescribe the methodology that determines the amount of the stumpage fees charged and changes to the

methodology or rates may adversely affect the Company's results.

West Fraser refies on log supply agreements in the Linited States which are subject to availability and market prices.
Currently, 80% of the Joyce and Huttig sawmills’ requirements are supplied under a long-term agreement, leaving 40%
1o be purchased on the open market. There are no guarantees that the Company can obtain guality southern yellow
pine logs at an appropriate market price. Changes in market conditions for these logs may adversely affect the

Company's results.

Competition

Markets for West Fraser's products are highly competitve. The Company’s ability to maintain or improve the cost of
producing and delivering its products to those markets is crucial. Factors such as cost and availability of raw materials,
enargy and labour, the ability to maintain high operating rates and low per unit manufacturing costs, and the quality of

its final products and its customer service all affect West Fraser's earnings.




Operational Curtailments and Transportation Limitations

From time to time, West Fraser suspends operations al one or more of its facilties or logging operations in response
to market conditions, environmentall risks, workplace salety concems or other operational issues, including power
failure, equipment breakdown, dry forest conditions, adverse weather conditions, labour disruptions and fire hazards.
These unscheduled operational suspensions could have a material adverse effect on West Fraser's financial condiion.
From time to time, West Fraser must also respond to rail car and truck shortages that imit product deliveries to its

customers, which may have a material adverse effect on its financial performance.

Labour Relations

West Fraser employs a unionized workforce in a number of its operations. Walkouts or strikes by employees could
result in lost production and sales, higher costs and supply constraints that could have a material adverse impact on
West Fraser's business. Also, West Fraser depends on a variety of third parties that employ unionized workers to
provide critical services to the Company's operating facilties. Labour disputes experienced by these third parties could

lead to disruptions at Cormparry facilities.

Natural Disasters

West Fraser's operations are subject to adverse natural events such as forest fires, adverse weather conditions,
disease, and, on the coastal region of British Columbia, earthquake activity. These events could damage or destroy
the Company’s physical facilities or its timber supply and similar events could also affect the facilties of West Fraser's
suppliers or customers. Any such damage or destruction could adversely affect West Fraser's financial resutts.
Although West Fraser believes it has reasonable insurance arrangements in place to cover certain of such incidents,
there can be no assurance that these arrangements will be sufiicient to fully protect the Company against such ipsses.

As is common in the industry, West Fraser does not insure loss of standing timber for any cause.

Mountain Pine Beetle

The long-term eflect of the MPR infestation on West Fraser's Canadian operations is uncertain. The potential effects
include a reduction in future AAC levels to those below current and pre-beetle AAC levels, a diminished grade and
volume of lumber that can be recovered over time from the beetle-killed logs, potentially decreased quality of wood
chips that can be produced from such logs, and increased production costs. The timing and extent of the efiect on
West Fraser's timber supply, lumber grade and recovery, quality of wood chips and production costs depends on a

varnety of factors and at this time cannot be reasonably determined.

Environment

West Fraser's operations are subject to regulation by federal, provincial, state and local environmental authorities, both
in Canada and the United States, inchuding industry specific environmental regulations relating to air emissions and
pollutants, wastewater (effluent) discharges, solid waste, landfil operations, forestry practices, site remediation and
the protection of endangered species and critical habitat. West Fraser has incurred, and wilt continue to incur, capital
expenditures and operating costs to comply with appiicable environmental laws and regulations. No assurance can
be given that changes in ernvironmental laws and regulations or their application will not have a matenial adverse effect
on West Fraser's business, operations, financial condition and operational results. Similarly, no assurance can be given
that any capital expenditures necessary for future compliance with existing and new environmental laws and
regulations could be financed from West Fraser's available cash flow. West Fraser may discover currently unknown
environmental problems, contamination, or conditions relating to its past or present operaticns. This may require site
or other remediation costs to maintain compliance or correct viclations of applicable environmental laws and
regulations or result in governmental or private claims for damage to person, property or the ernvironment, which could

have a material adverse effect on West Fraser's business, financial condition and operational results.




2006 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

West Fraser has in place internal programs under which all its forestry and manufacturing operations are audited for
compliance with applicable laws and standards and with West Fraser's management systems. West Fraser's
woodlands operations in Canada, and the harvesting operations of its key U.S. suppliers, are third-party certified to
intemationally-recognized sustainable forest management standards. West Fraser's operations and its ability to seil its
preducts could be adversely affected if those operations did not. or were perceived by the public as failing to, comply

with applicable laws and standards, including responsible environmental standards.

First Nations Claims

Failure of the government of British Columbia to adequately discharge its obligations to First Nations groups may affect
the validity of its actions in dealing with public rights, including the granting of Crown timber harvesting rights. The
Company cannol assure that First Nations claims will not in the future have a material adverse affect on its timber

harvesting rights or its ability to exercise or renew them or secure other timber harvesting rights.

U.S. Sawmill Acquisition

‘West Fraser’'s acquisition of 13 sawmills Iocated in the southern United States is expected to complete by the end of
March 2007. The anticipated timing and benefits of this acquisition are subject to risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated. These include, but are not limited to: the successiul
implementation of the Company's business plan for the acquired facilities ncluding management and administration
and anticipated integration with the Company’s current business, processes and systems; the timing and extent to
which the Company realizes anticipated synergies and cother benefits of the acquisition; the reaction of customers,
suppliers and other third parties; the diversion of management’s time on acquisition-related issues; and other risks and

uncertainties, including those disclosed by the Company from time to time.

Business Outlook
Key uncertainties facing West Fraser in 2007 nclude potential commodity price movements and changes in the value

of the Canadian dollar compared with the U.S. dollar.

Earning Sensitivity to Key Variables - based on year-end capacities' ($ millions) Table XXIX
Factor Variation Change in Eamings
Lumber price?3 US $50 Change per Mfbm 169
Plywood price®? Us $50 Change per Msf az
MDF price® US $50 Change per Msf 12
NBSK price® US $50 Change per tonne 19
BCTMP prica® US $50 Change per tonne 22
Linerboard and kraft price® US S50 Change per tonne 18
Newsprint price US $50 Change per tonne 5
U.S. - Canadian $ exchange rate* Us $0.0 Change per Cdn $ 17
Sawlog cost Cdn $10 Change per m? 106

1. Assumes exchange rate of Cdn 51.165 per US $1.00 and excludes U.S. sawmils to be acquired in 2007,
2. Change does not inchude any potential change in log costs,

3. Change does not include any potential change in wood chip prices.

4. Excludes exchange impact on translation of LS. denominated debt and othar monetary itemns.




West Fraser expects U.S. housing starts to remain low compared to prior years as a result of a high inventory of
available homes. Accordingly, the Company expects lumber and structural panel prices to remain at low levels for

mast of 2007,

West Fraser expects that pulp markets will peak in early 2007 as capacity increases may put downward pressure
on pulp prices. Balanced linerboard markets and improving kraft paper markets should result in higher prices for

these products.

The Hinton Fulp milt restruciuring plan is expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2007 and should improve
the cost structure of this mill. The Kitimat cogeneration project was completed in January 2007 and is expected o

result in reduced costs at the Kitimat operations.,

On February 10, 2007, the union representing train conductors and certain yard workers for Canadian National Railway
Company ("CN™), West Fraser's primary rail carrier, went on strike. CN has announced a pian to maintain service levels
at 65% of normal levels for the duration of the strke, The Company's ability to deliver product to its customers is
expected to be impacted throughout the strike, although it is too soon to determine the extent of the affect. In addition,
the rail car supply to the Company’s sawmills in early 2007 has been adversely affected due to rail service issues related

to winter operating conditions. The rait car supply issues have led to an increase in lumber nventory in early 2007.

West Fraser eslimates that its capital expenditures will be $200 milion in 2007, which includes anticipated
expenditures at the 13 U.S. sawmills to be acquired. Many cf the plarined expenditures are for high pay-back items to
enhance future profitabiiity.

The acquisition of 13 U.S. sawmills, expected to close at the end of the first quarter of 2007, will result in greater
geographic and product diversification for the Company. The Company believes the long-term market fundamertals
and outlook for the industry are positive. However, the recent decline in U.S. housing starts has resulted in low product
prices for both the U.S. and Canadian lumber industry and will result in the U.S. mills incurring kosses until prices improve.




RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT

The management of West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. is responsible for the preparation. integrity and objectivity of the
consolidated financial statements and all retated financial data contained in the annual report. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared by management in accorcdance with accounting principals generaly
accepted in Canada and necessariy include amounts that represent the best estimates and judgmerts of

management,

Management mainiains a systern of intemal controls over financial reporting that encompasses policies, procedures
and controls to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss or unauthorized use,
transactions are executed and recorded in accordance with management's authorization and financial records are

accurate and reliable.

The Company's independent auditors, who are appointed by the shareholders, conduct an audit in accordance with

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards to allow them to express an opinion on the financial statements, ‘

The Board of Directors provides oversight to the financial reporting process through ts Audit Committee, comprised ‘
of four Directors, none of whom is an officer or employee of the Company. The Audit Committee meets regularly with
management and the Comparny's auditors to review the statements and matters retating to the audit. The Company’s

auditors have fult and free access to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reports its findings to the Board of
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Directors for consideration in approving the consofidated financial statements for issuance to the shareholders.

Py |

/
Henry H. Ketcham Martti Solin
Chairman of the Board, Exacutive Vice-President, Finance, Corporate Development
President & Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer

February 15, 2007




AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of
West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. as at Decermber 31, 2006 and 2005
and the consolidated statements of eamings, retained eamings and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial staternents are the responsibitity of the Company's management. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
of matenal misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disciosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consoclidated financial statements present faity. in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for lhe years

then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Decsmmteihaunbovporns LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Vancouver, British Columbia

February 15, 2007
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CONSOQOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at December 31, 2006 and 2005 {in thousands of Canadian doliars)

2006 2005
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short-term investments $ 605,574 $ 62,199
Accounts receivable 300,919 308,509
Invertories (note 4) 531,873 572,004
Prepaid expenses 12,921 14,081
Currert assets held for sale (note 5) — 30,739
1,451,287 987,532
Property, plart, equipment and timber (note 6) 2,133,914 2,230,055
Deferred charges (note 7) 41,826 27,143
Goodwill 263,719 263,719
Other assets (note 8) 127,680 61,537
Long-term assets held for sale (note 5) — 63,697
$ 4018435 % 3,633,683
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current llabilites
Cheques issued in excess of furnds on deposit $ - 5 43,899
Operating loans (note 9) — 165,111
Accounts payable and accrued kabilties 468,429 333,075
Income taxes payable 178,861 4,661
Current portion of reforestation obligations (note 10) 54,222 52,319
Current portion of long-term debt (note 9) 128,284 4,500
Current kabiities held for sale (note 5) — 13,555
820,796 617,120
Long-term debt (note 9) 499,620 623,860
Other liabilities (note 10) 137,446 132,960
Future income taxes (note 20) 312,443 377,637
Long-term labilities held for sale (note 5) — 16,187
1,779,305 1,767,764
Shareholders’ equity (note 11) 2,239,130 1,865,919
$ 4,018435 §% 3,633,683

Commitments (note 12}

Approved by the Board of Drectors
. /"’/ s
o 4, .
I TS S

Wiiliam P. Ketcham
Director

TI0E o Eomn,

. J. Duncan Gibson

Director




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

For the years ended Decarnber 31, 2006 anc 2005 {in thousands of Canadian dollars, except eamings per share)

2006 2005
Sales $ 3,325,835 3 3,576,701
Costs and expenses
Cost of products sold 2,296,157 2,321,785
Freight and other distribution costs 543,663 541,966
Export taxes 186,755 —_
Amortization 251,869 255,384
Selling, general and administration 113,896 120,318
Share option recovery (note 2) (1,233) (5,666}
Restruchuring charge (note 15) 37,831 —
Duty {refund) expense (note 16) (325,395} 151,431
2,933,343 3,385,218
Operating eamings 392,492 191,483
Otheor
interest income on duty refund 50,032 —_
Interest expense — net (note 17) (37,592) {48,424)
Exchange {loss) gain on long-term debt {720) 13,850
Gain on sale of power purchase agreement (note 8) 61,793 -
Gain on assets held for sale (note 5) 21,686 —_
Gain on timber take-back (note 18) 13,609 3,300
Cther income (expense) (note 19) 20,984 (8,771)
Eamings before income taxes and non-controlling interest 522,284 151,438
{Pravision for) recovery of income taxes (note 20)
Current (181,741) (66.878)
Future 57,885 24,581
(123,856) (42,297)
Eamings before non-comntroling interest 398,428 109,141
Non-comtrolling irterest (431) {1,491)
Eamings $ 397,997 % 107,650
Earmings per share (note 21)
Basic $ 9.31 $ 2.52
Diluted s 223 § 2.49
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
For the years ended Decemnber 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands of Canadian doliars)
2006 2006
Retained earnings
Balance — beginning of year $ 1,268,811 $ 1,185,102
Change in accounting policy (note 2) {1,548) —_
Eamings 397,997 107,650
1,665,260 1,292,752
Common share dividernds (23,949) {23,841)
Balance — end of year S 1,641,311 s 1,268,811
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands of Canadian dolars)

20086 2005
Cash flows from operating activities
Earnings S 397,997 107,650
kems not affecting cash
Amortization 251,869 255,384
Writedown of pulp assets (note 15) 34,780 —_
Exchange ioss (gain) on long-term debt 720 (13,850)
Change in reforestation obbgations {8,268) {2,134)
Change in other long-term liabilties 12,043 (67,043)
Change in deferred charges (14,607} 9,101
Future income taxes (59,043) (24,3286)
Gain on asset sales (98,262) (3,171)
Other 2,753 4145
521,984 265,756
Net change in non-cash working capital tems 358,214 (236,053)
880,198 20,703
Cash flows from financing actlivities
Repayment of long-term debt {1,200) (249,300)
(Repayment cf) net proceeds from operating loans (185,111} 99,11
Common share dividends (23,949) (23,941)
Issuance of Common shares (note 11) 554 527
Other 156 166
(189,550} (173,437}
Cash flows from imresting activities
Additions to property, plant, equipment and timber {211,630} (224,401)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant, equipment and timber 372,013 22,624
Net proceeds from assets held for sale {note 5) 81,429 —_
Adgdition to power purchase agreement (note 8) (17,527} —
Decrease in other assels 7,341 14,248
{103,374) (187,529)
Increase (decrease) in cash 587,274 (331,263)
Net cash — beginning of year 18,300 349,563
Net cash — end of year S 605,574 18,300
Net cash consists of
Cash and short-term investments S 605,574 62,199
Cheques issued in excess of funds on deposit -— (43,899)
S 605,574 18,300
Supplemental information
Interest paid ] 40,760 50,219
Income taxes paid $ 73,335 243,662




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Decamber 31, 2006 and 2005 {Figures are In thousands of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of operations
The Company is an integrated forest products company producing lumber, panels and pulp and paper products.

Basis of presentation
The Company's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

o
o

accounting principles. Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's
presentation.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. Principal direct and
indirect operating subsidiaries are West Fraser Milis Ltd., West Fraser Forest Products Inc., Blue Ridge Lumber Inc.,
Ranger Board Inc., Alberta Plywood Ltd.,, West Fraser, Inc., (formerly West Fraser (South), Inc.), West Fraser
Newsprint Ltd., and Sundre Forest Products Ltd.

Investrments in and operations of the Company’s joint ventures are accounted for by the proportionate consolidation

method, except for consolidated variable interest entities.

Revenue recognition
Revenues are derived from product sales and are recognized upon the transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership, provided collectibility is reasonably assured.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Significant areas requiring estirmates are asset valuations, reforestation
obligations, other asset retirement obligations and employee future benefits. Actual amounts could differ materially
from those estimates.

Foreign currency translation
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Monetary assets and fiabiites denominated in toreign currencies, including long-term debt, are translated into
Canadian dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the period. Other assets and liabilites and income and
expense items are transtated at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Resulting exchange gains or

losses are included in eamings.

The Company's foreign operations are considered to be integrated. Accordingly, monetary items are translated at the
rates of exchange in effect at the batance sheet dates, and non-monetary items are translated at historical exchange
rates. Bevenues and expenses are translated at the average rate of exchange in effect during the peried in which they
occur, except for amortization of assets, which is transiated at the same historical exchange rate as the asset to which
it relates. Gains or losses on the translation of monetary iterns are included in eamings.

Cash and short-term investments
Cash and short-term investrments consist of cash on deposit and short-term interest-bearing securities with maturities

at their purchase date of three months or less.

Inventories
Inventories of logs and manufactured products are valued at the lower of average cost and net realizable value.
Inventories of other raw materials, processing materials and supplies are valued at the lower of average cost and

replacement cost.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2008 and 2005 (Figures are in thousands of Canadian doliars, except where indicated)

Property, plant, equipment and timber

Property, ptant, equipment and timber are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Major manufacturing assets
under construction include capitaized interest and preproduction and start-up costs, where applicable. Expenditures
for additions and improvements are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repars are charged to earmings.
Upon retirement, disposal or destruction of assets, the cost and related amortization are removed from the accounts
and any gain or loss is reflected in earnings.

Property, plant and equipment are principally amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated usefu lives as
tollows:

Buiklings 10 - 30 years
Manmufacturing equipment and machinery 10 - 20 years
Fixtures and other equipment 3 -10 years

Timber rights and roads are amortized over a period not exceeding 60 years.
Capitalized preproduction and start-up costs are amortized over a period not exceeding five years.,

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid for an acquistion over the fair value of the net assets
acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to an impairment test on at least an annual basis, or more frequently

if events or circumstances indicate that it may be impaired.

Goodwill impaiment Is assessed based on a comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit to the underlying carrying
value of the reporting unit’s net assets, including goodwill. When the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its
fair value, the falr vatue of the reporting unit's goodwill is compared with its camying amount to measure the amournt
of impairment ioss, if any.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews property, plant, equipment and timber for impairment whenever evenls or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amournt may not be recoverable. Recoverabilty is assessed by comparing
the carrying amount to the projected future net cash flows the long-lived assets are expected to generate.

Asset retirement obligations

The Company harvests timber under various timber rights. Eslimated future reforestation cbligations are accrued and
charged to earnings at the time the timber is harvested. The reforestation obligation is reviewed periodically and
changes to estimates are credited or charged to eamings.

The Company records the estimated far value of a liability for other asset retirement obligations in the period a
reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The {air value is added to the carrying amount of the associated asset
and armortized over its useful ife. The liability is accreted over time through periodic charges to eamings and is reduced
by actual costs of settlement.

Share-based compensation

The Company's share option plan gives share option holders the right to elect to receive a cash payment in fieu of
exercising the option to purchase Common shares, The Company records an expense or recovery for share options,
based on the quoted market value of the Company's Commeon shares. if an option holder elects to purchase Common
shares, as opposed to receiving a cash payment, both the exercise price and the accrued liability is credited to
shareholders’ equity.

The Company's directors’ deferred share unit plan (*DDSU") allows for setttements in cash or Common shares at the
holder’s option and, therefore, is accounted for as a lability. Changes in the Company's obligations under the DDSU,
which arise from fluctuations in the market price of the Company's Common shares underlying this plan, are recorded

in seliing, general arkd administration expenses.




Employee future benefits
The Company accrues for its obligations under employee benefit plans and the related costs net of plan assets.

The Company has adopted the following policies:

+  The measurement date used for accourting purposes is October 31;

*  The cost of pensions eamed by employees is actuanally determined using the projected benefit method pro-
rated on service and management’s estimate of expected plan investment performance, safary escalation
and retirement ages of employees;

. For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are valued at fair value;

. Past service costs arising from plan amendments and transitional obligations are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the estimaled average remaining service perod of employees active at the date of the
amendments;

+  The excess of the net actuarial gain (loss) over 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the fair value

of plan assets is amortized over the average remaining service period of the active employees.

For defined contribution plans, the pension expense is the amount of contributions the Comparny is required to pay for

services rendered by employees.

Income taxes

Future income taxes are provided for using the liability method. Under the fiability method, future income taxes are
recognized for temporary differences between the tax and financial statement bases of assets, liabilites and certain
camry-forward tems.

Future income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be realized.
Fulure income tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of
substartive enactrment.

2. CHANGE IN ACCOQUNTING POLICY

Effective Decermber 31, 2008 the Company adopted the new provision of the Emerging lssue Committee
pronouncement No. 162 for share-based compensation for directors, officers and employees eligible to retire before
the vesting date. Compensation expense is now recognized over the earlier of the normal vesting peried or the period
from the grant date to the date the emplayee becomes eligible to retire. Pursuant to the transition provision, the
Company recorded an adjustment of $1,548 (net of tax of $791) to opening 2006 retained eamings for the cumulative
effect on prior years arising from this change in accounting policy. The Company has not restated earnings of any prior
period as a result of adopting this accounting change as the Company has concluded that such an impact is not
material. The fiscal 2006 income statement effect of adopting this change in policy was an increase in earnings of
$1,840 (net of tax of $838).
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WEST FRASER NOTES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2006 and 2005 (Figures are in thousands of Canadian dolars, except where indicated)

3. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

The Cormpany’s joint verttures are Alberta Newsprint Company (50%) and Cariboo Pulp and Paper Cormpany {50%).

The Company's proportionate share of the joint ventures is as follows:

20086 2005
Current assets E: 66,213 § 57,078
Non-current assets 174,168 149,096
Total assets 240,371 206,174
Cumrent liabifities (26,877) (23,510)
Non-current liabilities {22,887) {22,396)
Equity 3 190,607 $ 160,268
Sales 3 215,585 $ 198,670
Costs and expenses (161,061) (186,472)
Eamings before income taxes $ 54,534 5 12,198
Cash flows from operating activities $ 54,595 & 40,607
Cash flows from financing activities $ 127 S —
Cash flows from investing activities $ (22,230) 3% {10,403)

The Company has business transactions with certain of its joint venture participants and entities related to these

participants. All transactions are at market prices and on normal business terms.

4. INVENTORIES

2006 2005

Logs and wood chips s 170,318 5 178,103
Manufactured products 269,571 305,609
Processing materials and supplies 91,984 88,292
$ 531,873 % 572,004

5. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

The Company sold its interest in two sawmils and the related timber harvesting rights for net proceeds of $79,228,

resulting in a gain of $21,547. The Company also sold road maintenance and logging operations located in Hinton,

Alberta for proceeds of $2,201, resulting in a gain of $139.

The resuits of operations from these assets to the sale dates are included in eamings. Effective January 1, 20086,

amortization was discontinued on the assets held for sale.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND TIMBER

2006

Cost

Accumulated
amuortization

Nat

Manufacturing plant, equipment and machinery
Construction-in-progress

Timber rights and roads

Rental properties

Cther

$ 3,207,455
73,261
806,703
15,584
28,089

5 1,781,682
208,499
4,055

2,942

% 1,425,773
73,261
598,204
1,529

25,147

S 4,131,092

$ 1,997,178

$ 2,133,914




2005

Accumulated
Cost amortization Net
Manufacturing plant, equipment and machinery $ 3136882 $ 1690656 $ 1,446,226
Construction-in-progress 99,581 — 990,581
Timber rights and roads 854,330 208,988 645,342
Rental properties 19,632 5,299 14,333
Other 26,836 2,263 24,573
$ 4137261 S 1,907,206 § 2,230,055
7. DEFERRED CHARGES
2006 2005
Deferred pension (note 13) S 35,634 % 20,760
Deferred financing fees — net 5,164 6,383
Deferred transaction costs (nete 12) 1,028 —
S 41,826 & 27,143
Deferred financing fees are amortized over the term of the related debt.
8. OTHER ASSETS
2006 2005
Power purchase agreements — net s 102,442 § 28,673
Investments 10,2 15,822
Advances for timber and timber deposits 14,6535 17,042
S 127,689 & 61,537

Power purchase agreements

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company entered into two power purchase agreements to acquire a portion of the

electricity generated from two power plants in Alberia at substantially predetermined prices. The Company sells the

electricity acquired under the power purchase agreement at prevaiing market prices. At the same time, the

Company's Alberta operations purchase electricity at prevaling market prices. Effective May 1, 2006, the Company

sold its interest in one of the agreements for proceeds of $68,211 while concurrently acquiring a greater interest in the

remaining agreement for $85,738. The transactions were accounted for as a sale and purchase respectively, resulting

in a gain of $61,793. Following the transactions, the Company's share of electricity generated was approximately 120

megawatts for 2006 and is expected to be 115 megawatts per year for the period 2007 to 2020. The power purchase

agreement is amortized over the fe of the agreement.

9. LONG-TEAM DEBT AND OPERATING LOANS
Long-term debt

2006 2005

Cdn $125,000 debentures due 2007; interest at 6.80% 5 124,984 $ 124,960
Cdn $150,000 debentures due 2009; interest at 4.94% 150,000 150,000
US $300,000 senior notes due 2014; interest at 5.20% 349,620 348,900
Cdn $3,300 term note; interest at floating ratest™ 3,300 4,500
627,904 628,360

Less: Current portion {128,284} (4,500)
5 499,620 $ 623,860

a Foating rates are based on Prime, US base, Bankers Acceptances or LIBORA at the Campany's opfion.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2006 and 2005 (Figures are in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where ndicated)

Interest payments are made on a semi-annual basis with the exception of the Cdn $3,300 term note, which are made

guarterly.

Principal repayments required are as follows:

2007 128,284
2008 —
2009 150,000
2010 -
20M —
Thereafter 349,620

627,904

Operating loans

The Company has approximately $516,700 (2005 - $530,000) in revolving lines of credit available, none of which was
drawn as at December 31, 2006 (2005 - $165,11). Interest is payable at floating rates based on Prirme, US base,
Bankers Acceptances or LIBOR at the Company's option. The Company has also issued $14,863 {2005 - $14,392)

under various letters of credit.

Al long-term debt and bank lines of credit are unsecured except for a $5,000 joint venture line of credit which is

secured by its working capital.

10. OTHER LIABILITIES

2006 2005

Post-retirement obligations {note 13} -] 54,029 § 44,243
Timber damage deposits 14,605 10,921
Reforestation obligations - long-term 60,054 68,187
Other asset retirement obligations 8,758 9,609
S 137,448 $ 132,960

Asset retirement obligations
The Company's asset retirernent obligations refate to its responsibility for reforestation under various timber rights and

to landfil closure and other site remediation costs.

Changes in asset retirernent obligations are as follows:

Reforestation Other
2006 2005 2006 2005

Asset retirement obligations
-~ baginning of year S 123,643 & 120942 $ 9,609 S 6,636
Liabiities recognized 40,234 44182 - -
liabilities setded (52,832) {45,504) {1,036} (106)
Accretion expense 5,753 5,412 497 868
Change in estimates 530 {4,209) {312} —_
Obligations sold {note 5) {3,052) - - -
Acguired obligations — 2,820 — 2,211
Agsset retirement obligations — end of year 114,276 123,643 B,758 9,609

Less:

Current portion {54,222) {52,319) —_ _
Long-term liabilities held for sale — (3,137) — —_
S 60,054 $ 68187 S 8,758 § 9,609




The total undiscounted amount of the estimated cash flows to settle the above obligations is $143,274 (2005 —
$154,519). The cash flows have been discounted using an inflaion and credit adjusted risk-free rates ranging from

3.25% 1o 4.6% to determine fair value.

The timing of the reforestation payments is based on the Cormpany's estimate of the armount of time required to attain
free to grow status in a given area, which is generally between 12 to 15 years, Payments relating to landfil closure and
site remediation costs are expected to occur at periods ranging up to 20 years.

11. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Authorized share capital

10,000,000 Preferred shares, issuable in series, without par value
200,000,000 Common shares, without par value

20,000,000 Class B common shares, without par value

2006 2005
Number of Number of

shares issuad Amourt shares issued Amount

Common 37,886,711 s 597,615 37,871,786 % 597,061
Class B common 4,885,206 481 4,885,206 491
Total Common 42,771,937 588,106 42,756,092 597,552
Retained earnings 1,841,311 1,268,811
Share purchase loans (287) {444)
$ 2,239,130 $ 1,865,919

Share capital transactions during 2006
The Company issued 14,945 Common shares for $554.

Share capital transactions during 2005
The Company issued 12,242 Common shares for $527 and 500,000 Class B common shares in the amount of $50
were exchanged for Common shares during the year.

Rights and restrictions of Common shares
Common shares and Class B common shares are equal in alf respects except that each Class B common share may

at any time be exchanged for one Common share.

Dividends payabie
Dhidends declared and unpaid at December 31, 2006 amounted to $5,988 (2005 - $5,886) and are included in
accounts payable and accrued labilties.

Share purchase loans

Share purchase loans receivable of $287 (2005 — $444) under the Company's management share purchase plan
are included as a reduction of shareholders’ equity. The loans are non-interest bearing, mature in 2008 and are
secured by a pledge of 12,326 (2005 — 18,475} Common shares.

Share option plan

Tha Cormpany has a share option plan for its directors, officers and employees, under which & may grant up to
3,505,506 share options. The exercise price of a share option is the closing price of the Company's Common shares
on the day preceding the grant date. The options vest at the earlier of retirement or 20% per year from the grant date
and expire after 10 years.
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NMOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006 and 2005 (FAigures are in thousands of Canadian doliars, except where indicated)

A summary of the activity in the share option plan is presented below:

2006 2005

Weighted Weighted

average average

exorcise exercise

price price

Options {dottars) Options (ctollaws)

Cutstanding — beginning of year 1,913,305 $ 33.68 1,866,348 $ 3010
Granted 330,200 4119 313,030 51.56
Exercised (43,421) 33.63 {266,073) 29.65
Expired/cancelled (45,400) 44.50 — —_—
Qutstanding — end of year 2154684 5% 34.60 1,913,305 & 33.68
Exercisable — end of year 1,389,076 $ 30.27 1143602 % 28.94

7]
-
rd
w
2
w
-
<
.
tn
-
<
[&]
Z
«
4
i
[a]
w
[
<
. a
]
Q
Y
r4
Q
[v]
Q
-
]
w
[
Q
2
19
w
%)
<
@€
v
-
7
W
z

The following table summarizes information about the share options outstanding at Decemiber 31, 2006;

Welghted
averoage Welghted Weighted
remaining average average
contractuai exercise Number of exercise
Range of exercise prices Number lite price exercisable price
{doliars) outstanding {years) {doliars} options {dollars)
$21.08 334,143 40 S 21.08 334,143 ] 21.08
$27.61 - $29.75 490,661 27 5 29.33 490,661 § 29.33
$33.41 — $35.54 562,650 57 S 33.44 412,610 S 33.44
£$38.90 — $41.19 469,200 84 § 40.37 78,800 S 38.90
$51.56 298,030 8.1 13 51.56 72,862 $ 51.56
2,154,684 57 S 24.60 1,389,076 S 30.27

Directors’ deferred share unit plan

Undier the DDSU, non-employee directors of the Company may elect to receiva all or a portion of their fee for that

fiscal year in the form of deferred share units which vest immediately. Units are redeemable, in cash or Common

shares, only following resignation or retirerment and must be redeemed by December 15 of the following year and in
certain cases a shorter time period. As at December 31, 2006, there were 20,499 (2005 - 13,149) units outstanding.

12. COMMITMENTS

a) In November 2006, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 13 sawmills for approximately US$325

milion, subject to post closing adjustments. The transaction is expected to close in the first quarter of 2007,

by Operating leases

The Company is committed to payments under certain operating leases for equipment, land, buildings and office

space. The payments required under these leases over the next five years amount to $9,058 (2005 — $9,202).

2007 % 2,580
2008 2,105
2009 1,480
2010 1172
20Mm 98O
Thereafter 7N

$ 9,058

c) Product purchase and sale commitments

The Company has long-term purchase and sale contracts with annual minimum volume commitments. All

contracts are at market prices and on normal business terms.

d) Capital expenditures

Capital commitments at Deceamber 31, 2006 amounted to $13,440 (2005 — $47,417).




13. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS
The Company maintains non-contributory defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans covering a majority

of its employees. The defined benefit plans provide pension benefits based on either iength of service or earnings and

length of service. The Company also provides group ife insurance, medical and extended health benefits to certain

employee groups.

The total pension expense for the Company's defined contribution pension plans is $1,475 (2005 - $2,103).
The status of the Company's defined benefit pension plans and other benefit plans, in aggregate, is as follows:

Pension plans

Other benefit plans

2006 2005 2006 2005

Expense
Current service cost -3 31,167 5 25849 % 1,005 % 1,004
Interest cost on eamed benefit cbligations 41,302 39,513 2,853 2,920
Actual return on plan assets {986,589) (62,799) —_ —_
Actual actuarial loss {gain)

on benefit obligations 32,869 73,291 {(728) 4,134
Other (87) (93) — —
Expense before adjustments 8,662 75,761 3,220 8,058
Difference batween expected retum

and actual retum on plan assets 50,097 24 169 — —
Differance between net actuarial (gain)

loss recognized and actual (gain}

loss on benefit obligations {30,674) (73,645} 893 (4,032)
Difference in other 320 187 480 460
Net expense 5 28,405 3% 26,572 & 4573 $ 4,486
Accrued benefit obligations
Projected benefit obligations — opening S 752,000 $ 653,108 $§ 54,924 $ 48,773
Acquired (divested) plans {11,995) — (1,026) 2,969
Current service cost 31,342 24,892 1,096 BB3
Interest cost 41,399 36,171 2,861 2,539
Benefits paid (38,578) (35,361) (1,578} (3,563)
Actuarial loss {(gain) and other 32,869 73,190 (728) 3,343
Plan transfers and improvements 3,363 — 35 —
Projected benefit obligations — ending S 810,400 5 752,000 S 55,584 § 54,924
Plan assets
Fair value — opening s 698,940 5 584892 $ — % -
Divested plans {11,465) s — -—
Actual retum on plan assets 96,589 62,799 — —
Contributions 37,653 85,601 1,578 3,563
Benefits paid {38,578) {35,361) (1,578) (3,563)
Plan transfers and improvements 347 —_ —_ —_
Other a6 9 — —
Fair value - ending ] 783,582 & 698,940 & -  $ —
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NOTES TO CONSOQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2006 and 2005 (Figures are in thousands of Canadian dodars, except where indicated)

Pension plans Other benefit plans

2008 2005 2006 2005

Funded status of the plans
Surplus {deficit) — registered plans s (28,016) $ {53,051 % (55,584) 5 (54,924}
— supplemental plans 1,198 (9) — —
(26,818) (53,060) (55,584) (54,924)
Unamortized net actuarial iosses 48,456 68,472 4,924 5,926
Unamortized past service costs 4,427 1,885 - -
Unamortized net transitional amount {2,307) {2,408) 2,763 3,223
Contributions after measurement date 5,744 6,521 - —
Long-term liabliities held for sale - 873 - —_
Net accrued benefit {labfiity) asset $ 29502 $ 22292 & (az7.8097) $ (45,775}

Rapresented by

Deferred pension (note 7) 5 356834 § 20,760 S - & —_
Pension and other benelit plans (note 10) (6,132) 659 {47,897) {45,775)
Long-term liabilities held for sale {note 5) — 873 — —
& 28,502 § 22,292 % (47,897) $ (45,775)

The significant actuarial assumptions used are as follows:
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Pension plans Other benefit plans
2006 2005 2006 2005

To determine benefit obligations

at end of year

Discount rate - 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25%

Expected rate of retum on plan assets 7.00% 7.00% n/a n‘a

Rate of increase in future compensation 3.25% 3.25% n/a na
To determine benefit expense {iIncome)

for the year

Discount rate 5.25% 6.00% 5.25% 6.00%

Expected rate of retum on plan assets 7.00% 7.00% n/a na

Rate of increase in future compensation 3.25% 3.75% n/a n/a

The Company funds heaith care benefit costs, shown under other benefit plans, on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
actuarial assumptions are for extended health care cost increases of 10% per year for five years, grading down to

4.5% per year thereafter, with no ncrease in the medical services plan.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A

one-percentage-peoint increase or decrease in assumed heakh care cost trend rates would have the following effects

for 2006:

Incroase Decrease
Total of service and interest cost $ 720 % m
Accrued benefit obligations S 8,747 $ B175




Assets
The weighted-average asset allocations of the Company’s defined benefit plans at the measurement date, by asset

category, are as follows:

2006 2005
Equity investments 61% 53%
Fixed income investments as% 38%
Other investments 4% 9%
100% 100%

Actuarial valuations
Actuarial valuations of the Company's pension plans are generally required every three years. The most recent
valuations and the next scheduled valuations for the Company’s principal defined benefit plans are as follows:

Last actuarial valuation date Scheduled Benefit Fair value
valuation date obligations of assats

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2006 3% 3%
December 31, 2004 October 1, 2006 2% 2%
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2007 49% 50%
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2006 4% 5%
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2008 42% 40%
100% 100%

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a) Fair values
The recorded amounts for cash and short-term investments, accounts receivable, operating koans, accounts

payable and accrued labiliies approximate fair values, based on their short-termn maturities.

The fair value of the Company's long-term debt at Decermber 31, 2006 was $480,341 (2005 - $617,540) based
on rates currently available to the Company for fong-term debt with similar terms and remaining maturities.

k) Creditrisk
The Company sells its products to a variety of customers under various payment terms and therefore is exposed
to credit risks. The Company has adopted poficies and procedures designed to limit these risks.

c) Currency risk
A significart portion of the Company’s eamings is generated from sales denominated in LLS. dollars. The
Company does not use forward exchange contracts to reduce its exposure to exchange rate movements,
however, the Company has a significant portion of its fong-term debt denominated in U.S. dollars.

15. RESTRUCTURING AND IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

During the year, the Company expensed $37,631 relaled to a restructuring of the pulp milt in Hinton, Alberta. Of this
amourt, $34,780 was for the writedown of property, plant, equipment and timber with the balance for other
restructuring costs.

In 2005, the Company expensed $7,715 related to the shut-down of a 50% owned sawmill. Of this amount, $5,184
was charged to amortization expense and $2,531 of other closure costs was charged to administration expensa.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 3t, 2008 and 2005 (Fgures are in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

16, COUNTERVAILING AND ANTIDUMPING DUTIES

On October 12, 2006, the Softwood Lumber Agreement (“SLA 2006") between the Canadian and U.S. govemments
came inte effect. The terms include replacing the then axisting countervailing and antidumping duties with a Canadian-
imposed export tax, or a combination of a lower tax and quota, both of which may vary based on the price of lumber
and the volume of shiprments to the United States. The agreement required both parties to withdraw all itigation and
the U.S. industry to waive their rights to file another case while the agreement is in effect. The SLA 2006 required the
U.S. government to refund with interest all duties collected. The Company’s share of the US$1 bilion to be paid to the
.8, government under the SLA 2006 is funded by a special charge of 18.06% on duties and interest up to October
12, 2006. The folowing amounts have been recorded in the financial statements related to duties and the SLA 2006:

20086 2005
Duties and interest receivable included in accounts receivable $ 2,680 & —
Special charge included in accounts payable $ 122,386 § —
Duties expensed prior to the SLA 2006 coming into effect S 61,432 $ 151,431
Duty refund recorded in income — net of related special charge (388,827) —
Duty (refund) expense $ (325,395) $ 151,431
Interest income $ (50,032) $ —_

The special charge payable includes amounis payable related to pre-2005 duties paid to Intemational Paper under
the terms of the agreement under which the Company acquired Weldwood of Canada Limited.

17. INTEREST EXPENSE

2006 2005
Long-term interest $ (34,569) § (47,478)
Current interest expense — net {3,023) (846)
S {37,592) 3 {48,424)

18. THE FORESTRY REVITALIZATION PLAN (“FRP")

In 2003, the Government of B.C. ("Crown™) enacted the FRP which provided for changes to Crown forest policy and to
the altocation of Crown timber tenures to licensees. The harvesting rights associated with replaceable tenures in excess
of certain annual volumes were reduced by 20% and assets, such as roads and bridges in the affected areas, were aiso
expropriated. The effect of the timber take-back was a reduction of approximately 1,275,000 m? of the Company's
existing aflowable annual cut on replaceable tenures. The Company has received $30,740 for the tenure reduction and
certain related assets resulting in a gain of $13,609.

19. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

2006 2005
Foreign exchange gain (loss) — net S 11,604 § {14,511)
Gain on asset sales 2,582 317
Rental income ~- net 1,205 1,480
Other —- net 5,593 1,079

S 20,984 S {8,771)




20. INCOME TAXES
The Company's effective tax rate is as follows:

2006 2005

Amount % Amount %

Income taxes at statutory rates s {178,057) (341) % (52,287) {34.9)

Large corpaorations tax — - (3.452) (2.3) 67

Non-taxable amounts 20,624 4.0 (4,502) (3.0) -. "f
Rate differentials between jurisdictions !ﬁ
and on specified activities 8,751 1.8 8,833 59 2
Reduction in statutory incorme tax rates 33,106 6.4 9,518 6.4 E
Benefit of losses not previously recognized 3,079 0.6 2,477 16 f
Other (11,359) (2.2) (2,884) (1.9) :-‘J
$  (123,856) (23.7) § (42,297) {28.2) z
z
The components of the future income taxes are as follows: «
2006 2005 E
Future income tax llabilities 3
Property, plant, equipment and timber % (378,182) % (462,632} E;
Other {16,450} (11,466) g
(394,632) {474,098) .o
Future income tax assets 8
Asset retirement obligations 32,737 46,563 'ﬂmj
Post-retirerment obligations 14,609 8,093 °
Loss carry-forwards 15,875 17,116 z
Other ) 18,968 23,789 g
82,189 96,461 t
$  (312,443) $ (377,637 g

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic eamings per share are calculated based on eamings available to Common shareholders, as set out below, using
the weighted average number of Common shares outstanding. Diluted eamings per share assume the exercise of
options using the treasury stock method.

2006 2005
Eamings available to shareholders S 397,997 5 107,650
Weighted average number of shares
Weighted average shares — basic 42,751,422 42,731,125
Share options — treasury stock method 375,924 556,334
Weighted average number of shares — diuted 43,127,346 43,287,459

Earnings per share (dollars)
Basic 5 231 $ 2.52
Diluted S 923 $ 2.49
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2006 and 2005 (Figures are in miions of Canadian dollars, except where indicated)

22, SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The segmentation of the Company’s manufacturing operations into lumber, panels and pulp and paper is based on

a number of factors, including simiarities in products, production processes, and economic charactenstics. The

accounting policies of each segment are the same as those described in note 1,

2006
corporata
Lumber Paneis Pulp & paper and other Consolidated
Sales at market prices
To extemnal customers $ 1,756.6 $ 4751 $ 1,095.41 S — S 3,3258
To other segments B83.4 7.6 — —
$ 18390 & 4827 S 1,09514 5 —
EBITDAM L 518.0 $ 52.8 $ 1228 % (11.8) $ 682.0
Amortization 17.6 39.7 o91.0 3.6 2519
Restructuring charge - o 37.6 - 37.6
Operating eamings (foss) 400.4 131 (5.8) (15.2) 3925
interest income (expense) — net 29.5 {6.3) {11.0) 0.2 12.4
Exchange less on long-term debt - - — (0.7) (0.7)
Gain on sale of power purchase
agreement 2.2 8.4 61.2 - 61.8
Gain on sale of assets held for sale 21.7 - — - 2.7
Gain on timber take-back 13.6 —_ - - 13.6
Other income (expensa) 13.8 0.4 {0.2) 7.0 21.0
Eamings (loss) before income taxes
and non—oontrol!ing_; interest 3 481.2 $ 156 $ 342 S (8.7) $ 522.3
Total capital employed™ $ 1,479.6 S 4223 S 100892 S 4105 $ 3,321.3
identifiable assets 5 1,773.7 5 4686.2 $ 1,100.6 § 6779 $ 4,018.4
Capital expenditures 3 123.0 3 19.9 § 665 & 22 S 216
Sales by geographic area
Sales to external customers
UsA $ 1,2813 S 1509 S 3988 5 - 8 1,831.0
Canada ass.1 314.0 84.68 — 763.7
Ewrope -_ -_ 116.8 -_ 116.8
Far East 11941 10.2 307.9 — 437.2
COther 0.1 e 187.0 — 187.1
$ 1,755.6 $ 4751 % 10851 3 — $ 3,325.8
Property, plant, equipment
and timber by geographic area
Canada $ 20428
USA a1.1
$ 21339

m Non-GAAP measures:

a} ESITDA is defined as operating eamings plus amortization of property, plant, equiprment and timber plus

restructuring charge.

b}  Capital employed is defined as identifiable assets less curent non-interest bearing fiabities ot ysar-end.




2005

Corporate
Lumber Panels Pulp & paper and other Consolidated
Sales at market prices
To external customers $ 20209 % 510 $& 10448 & - % 35767
To other segmenis 86.0 5.0 — —
$ 21069 516.0 $ 10448 $ -
EBITDA™ $ 3278 65.4 622 § 8.5 % 448.9
Amortization 121.9 38.1 82.5 2.9 255.4
Operating eamings (loss) 205.9 27.3 {(30.3) (11.4) 191.5
Interest expense (28.0) {9.1) {101} 1.2) (48.4)
Exchange gain on long-term debt — — — 13.9 13.9
Gain on timber take-back 33 — - — 3.3
Cther income (expense) (0.4) (0.4} 0.8 (8.9) (8.9}
Earnings {loss) before income faxes
and non-controfling interest 5 1808 § 78 $ (396) $ (7.6) % 151.4
Total capital ermployed!™ $ 1,7629 & 4508 § 9762 $ 401 $ 3,230.0
Identifiable assets S 19389 $% 4827 % 11,0813 § 1208 $ 3,633.7
Capital expenditures $ 1474  § 2386 $ 466 $ 68 & 224.4
Sales by geographic area
Sales to external customers
USA 5 14603 % 169.7 $ 3788 % — $ 20088
Canada 410.2 326.4 73.2 _ B0S.8
Eurcpe — [eR] 126.2 —_— 126.3
Far East 1503 14.8 2471 - 2.2
Other 0.1 — 219.5 — 219.6
$ 20209 % 5110 $ 11,0448 3 - % 3,576.7
Property, plant, equipment
and timber by geographic area
Canada 5 2,127.5
USA 102.6
$ 2,2301

m Non-GAAP measures:

a) EBITDA Is defined as operating eamings plus amortization of property, plart, eguipment and Smber plus

restructuring charge.

b}  Capital employed is defined as identifiable assats less curent non-interest bearing liabdities at year-end,
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EIVINONBENTAL REPORT (3)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. is committed to responsible stewardship of the
environment. A philosophy of continual improvement of our forest practices
and manufacturing procedures has been adopted to optimize the use of
resources and minimize or eliminate the impact of our operations on the
environment. West Fraser recognizes that environmental excellence is an

integral aspect of long-term business success.

Our Company and its employees are committed to the following:

* Complying with all applicable environmental laws and regulations, and with other
requirerments to which the organization subscribes.

s Preventing pollution and continuing to improve our environmental performance
by setting and reviewing environmental cbjectives and targets.

* Conducting periodic envirorimental audits.

+  Providing training for employees and contractors to ensure envirecnmentally
responsible work practices.

* Communicating our environmental performance to employees, customers,
shareholders, local communities and other stakeholders.

* Reviewing, on a regular basis, this policy to ensure that it reflects the Company’s

ongoing commitment to environmental stewardship.




ENVIRONMENTAL REPORT

Environmental Certification
West Fraser maintains third-party sustainable forest management certification of all of its woodlands operations in
British Columbia and Alberta, meeting a key membership requirement established by the Foresl Products Association

of Canada.

Al of West Fraser’s Canadian woodlands operations are certified to the Sustainable Forestry Initiative ("SFI") standard,
other than its operations in Hinton., AB, which are certified to the CAN/CSA Z809 standard. Both SFl and CAN/CSA
ZB09 are intemationally recognized certification systems which confinm that forest management practices are carried
out to a standard that integrates the sustainable growing and harvesting of trees with the protection of wikdlife, plants,
water and soil guality, and with a wide range of conservation goals. With these systems in place, Wesl Fraser's
customers can have confidence that the Company’s products are derived from sustainabhe-managed forests verified

by independent third-party auditors.

In 20086, as part of s customer assurance program, West Fraser received certification of its chain of custody system
to the Program for Endorsement of Forest Cenrtification (“PEFC"} standard for its Canadian forest products. The PEFC-
certified chain of custody afows the Company to demonstrate to customers that the fibre in its supply chain comes

from sources that comply with applicable laws, regulations and sustainable resource standards.

West Fraser also maintains certification of the Environmental Management Systems (“EMS™) at its Canadian
woodlands to 1ISO 14001, a widely recognized EMS certification system. 150 14001 provides independent verification
that the Company’'s EMS considers and takes measures to minimize or eliminate the environmental impact of its

activities while striving for performance improvernents.

The Cariboo, Hinton and Quesnel River pulp mills maintained their manufacturing EMS ISC 14001 registrations. The
Alberta Newsprint mill and the Slave Lake Pulp mill obtained certification of their EMS and Safety programs under the
Alberta Forest Products Association ForestCare program.

Both MDF manufacturing operations maintained the Green Cross certfication, which verifies that MDF materials are
made from 100% recycled content. They also maintained Environmentally Preferred Product certification from the

Composite Pane! Association.

In 2006, West Fraser conducted internal environmental audits at the linerboard and kraft paper mill at Kitmat, BC, the
sawmills at Chasm, BC, Wiliams Lake, BC and Blue Ridge, AB, the phywood mills at Quesnel, BC and Wiliams Lake,
BC and the MDF mill at Blue Ridge, AB. These audits complerment West Fraser’s external certification programs by

monitoring the Company’s practices and measuring its performance against intemally-established targets.

Environmental Conservation

West Fraser has long been a participant in the joint conservation planning and research process with govemment
agencies, industry and public interest groups related to the woodland caribou in Alberta and the mountain caribou in
B.C. In 2006, West Fraser spearheaded the formation of the Caribou Landscape Management Association in Alberta,
whose members include companies in the forest products and oil and gas sectors and an aboriginal organization. This

group funds and provides on-the-ground carnbou conservation solutions.

Permits, Approvals, and Leases
The sawmil at Blue Ridge, AB received registration under the Alberta government Code of Practice for Sawmnill Plants,

which replaces Lhe systermn of individual approvals for sawmills in the province.

The LVL plant at Rocky Mountain House, AB renewed its operating approval issued by Aberta Ervironment. The
approval specifies increased air emission monitorng requirements and requires the mill to reassess the effectiveness

of its log yard stormwater collection system.
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ENVIRONMENTAL REPORT

With the acquisition of Weldweood of Canada Limited in Decernber 2004, West Fraser acquired a foreshore property
lease on Vancouver Istand that contains a former coliery wash pile. West Fraser completed work in 2006 to remediate
a creek transiting the property to reduce the risk of erosion. West Fraser also conducted an extensive environmental

characterization of the site and an assessment of various remedial options.

Effluent Quality

In 2006. the Alberta Newsprint mill achieved a 680% reduction i the discharge levels of phosphorous. an effluent
nutrient, to the Athabasca River over those measured in 2005. The linerboard and kraft paper mill at Kitimat improved
its effluent quality across several measures, with reductions during the past several years ranging from 25% to 75%.
The Quesnel River pulp mill continues to reatize improvements to effluent quality from the capital upgrade 1o its effluent
treatment system completed in 2005. Additionally, the Hinton, Cariboo and Slave Lake pulp mills maintained consistent

effluent quality perfermance within their permit levels.

Various improvements continue to be made at the Kitimat mill to address the effect of its efluent on the taste of
eulachon, a species of fish that spawns in the Kitimat River and other northem rivers during a brief period each year.
These improverments continue to increase the overall effectiveness of the etftuent treatment system. Based upon the
results of the 2006 program, West Fraser reached an agreement with the faderal and provincial regulatory agencies
to extend the terms of the program to address the effect of the Kitimat mill's effluent. This_ agreement is supported by
the Haisla First Nation.

Alberta Environment has implemented a policy that will require pulp and paper mills in Alberta to reduce levels of
biclogical oxygen demand and total suspended solids in pulp mill effluent. The new levels will be phased in over the
next few years as pulp and paper mills renew their operating approvals. The Slave Lake pulp mill and the Alberta
Newsprint mill recently received their approvals and are able to meet the new requirements. However, certain
maodifications may be necessary at the Hinton Pulp mill to ensure that it will also be able to meet these requirements.

The renewatl of its operating approval is expected in 2008.

Alberta Ervircnment also requires pulp and paper mills operating on the Athabasca River to participate in water quality

studies. West Fraser's mills are active participants in this ongoing initiative.

Air Quality

As part of the contruction of the new Quesnel sawmil, an upgraded thermal energy system fueled by wood waste
rasiduals to dry lumber was installed. This system is equipped with high efficiency air emission controls to minimize
particulate discharges. The wood waste residuals supplying this system have been diverted from a beehive burner
operated by a third party in the Quesnet community. These actions are part of the program to discontinue the use of
the bumer by December 2007 and meet the deadline established by the Province. West Fraser is also on schedule to

close the beehive burner at its sawmill in Houston, BC to meet the same Decermnber deadline.

A thermal energy systern was also commissioned at West Fraser’s sawmill in Blue Ridge, AB. As this system replaced
a burner, there has been a significant reduction in particulate discharges from the mil’'s operation. The Company's
sawrmill at Sundre, AB received an approval amendment for construction of a thermal energy system, which will be

campleted in 2007.

High efficiency air emissicn controls were installed at the plywood mill in Wiliams Lake, BC to reduce particulate
discharges from the wood waste residual fired boiler system. This resolves an ongaoing issue with permit non-
compliance for boiler particulate emissions. An electrostatic precipitator was installed at the plywood facility in

Edmonton, AB to reduce air emissions from the dryers.




In Wiliams Lake, Quesnel and the Bukley Valey-Lakes District in B.C., West Fraser continues to participate in

stakeholder airshed management planning processes aimed at improving air quality in these areas.

The U.S. sawmils at Joyce, AR and Huttig, LA are on track to meet the requirements for compliance with boiter

maximum achievable control technology regulations that wilt come into effect by 2008.

Greenhouse Gases
wWest Fraser tracks greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions annualy from its manufacturing plants. In 2006, total direct
emissions were 41% below 1990 levels at the Company's facilities despite increased production in all product

segments.

Heal generated from the new thermal energy systern at the Blue Ridge, AB sawmill displaced natural gas in the lumber
dying kins and resulted in reduced GHG emissions. The thermal energy system at the sawmil at Sundre, AB, to be

completed in 2007, will also reduce GHG emissions.

The Canadian government has proposed legisiation that would set GHG targets for the pulp and paper industry, Al
of West Fraser's pulp and paper mills are expected to be subject to this legislation,

Non-compliances, Charges and Spills

In December 2004, West Fraser was charged in connection with a black liquor release into a drainage ditch in 2002
at its operation in Kitimat. West Fraser agreed o plead guilty under the federal Fisheries Act and under the B.C.
Environmental Management Act and pay a penalty of $100,000. In Jaruary 20086, the Kitimat mill exceeded lime kiln
particutate ermission lirmits. In November 20086, the mill had a release of dilute sodium hydroxide to a stormwater ditch

but a significant portion of the chemical was recovered. This incidert is under investigation by Environment Canada.

In 2005, the Cariboo Pulp milt was charged with two counts under the federal Transportation of Dangercus Goods Act
regarding an incident which involved damage to a rail car alleged to contain sulphur dioxide. The incident occurred
prior 10 West Fraser acquiring a 50% interest in this mill in December 2004. Although the charges were dismissed in
2006, the Crown is appealing the decision,

The MDF milf at Blue Ridge, AB exceeded permitted formaldehyde emission levels on several occasions from one of

its dryers in 2005 and 2006. West Fraser is working with Alberta Environment to address this issue.

In 2005, the LVL mill at Rocky Mountain House, AB had several stormwater pond discharges that did not meet the
requirements of its permits and in 2006 implemented intedm measures to ensure that the stormwater pond did not
overflow. The incidents in 2005 remain under investigation by Alberta Erwironment and the mil continues to work with
its consuttant and Alberta Environment to develop a permanent strategy for managing the pond. In 2006, the LvL mil
exceeded permitted emission levels from its dryers. West Fraser plans to install an improved air emission discharge

collection system for the dryers in 2007.

The sawmill at Fraser Lake, BC and the veneer mill at Slave Lake, AB hacd incidents of nonconformance with the
operating temperature for their residual wood waste burners refated to a lack of wood waste residuals and limited
operating periods. The mills have implemented improved operating procedures to eliminate future nonconformance.

The issues have been reviewed with regulators and no concems were identified.

The joint-venture sawmill at Red Earth, AB, was shut down permanently in September 2005. Prior 1o the closure, the
mill instafled a hydrocarbon product recovery system to capture hydrocarbon contamination at the mill site, a condition
that exdsted before West Fraser acquired its 50% ownership interest. Monitoring of site conditions and operation of

the recovery system is ongoing.
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COMPLIANCE WITH TOXICITY REGULATIONS
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R YEAR FINANGIAL REWEW

SIX YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW

($ mikons, except as ctherwise ndcated)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Earmings
Sales 3,325.8 3,576.7 2,400.0 1,920.6 1,985.8 1.851.5
Cost of product sold 2,296.1 2321.8 1,359.6 1,287.7 1,243.8 1,181.3
Freight and other distribution costs 543.7 542.0 346.3 300.5 286.2 265.0
Export taxes 16.8 — — - - —
Amortization 251.9 255.4 153.9 142.3 135.4 123.3
Selling, general and administrative 13.9 120.3 71.9 60.2 69.1 70.5
Share option expense (1.3) (5.7 251 8.9 — —
Restructuring charge 37.6 — — — - —
Duty (refund} expense (325.4) 151.4 155.6 12.0 42.4 24,2
Operating earnings 392.5 191.5 287.6 9.0 208.9 187.2
Interest income (expense) — net 12.4 (48.4) {16.0) (16.9) (32.6) (33.5)
Exchange gain (foss) on long-term debt {0.7) 3.9 26.6 40.8 5.5 {26.6)
Cther income {expense) 8.1 (5.6) (1.4) 3.3 3.4 47
lncome tax (expense) recovery (123.9) (42.3) (84.8) 6.9 {56.2) {34.5)
Eamings from continuing operations 398.4 109.1 212.0 431 129.0 97.3
Earnings from discontinued operations —_ — —_ —_ 8.5 17.6
Non-controlling interest {0.4) (1.4) — — — —
Earnings 398.0 107.7 212.0 431 137.5 4.9
Cash provided from operations 880.2 29.7 3951 151.7 178.3 277.4
Capital expenditures and acquisitions 211.6 224.4 1.264.0 85.4 123.4 142.8
Financial position
Working capital 621.5 370.4 402.8 525.5 480.1 286.6
Net capital assets 2133.9 2,2301 2,344.5 1.245.7 1,317.8 1,332.0
Others assets & deferred charges 169.5 152.3 103.9 B85.6 104.2 1o
Goodwil 263.7 2637 2767 — — —
Net discontinued assets — — e — = 1221
Net Assets 3,188.6 3,016.5 3,127.9 1,856.8 1,902 1,841.8
Long-term debt 499.6 623.9 735.5 287.0 3377 359.6
Other fabilities & future income taxes 449.9 526.7 610.9 248.6 266.8 306.4
Shareholders' equity 2,239.1 1,865.9 1.781.5 1,321.2 1,2587.6 1,175.8
Non-current liabilities & equity a188.6 3,016.5 31279 1,856.8 1,9021 1,841.8




2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Per common share (dollars)
Diluted EPS 9.23 2.49 5.36 1.16 3.70 273
Diluted EPS from continuing operations 9.23 2.49 5.36 116 3.47 2.59
Comimon shareholder's equity 52.35 43.64 41.68 35.85 35.23 32.00
Price range — high 44,006 54.87 55.10 40.55 40.91 377

— low 34.85 38.30 36.16 29.25 26.27 21.07

— close 41.38 41.22 4B.20 38.00 .82 31.77
Cash dividends declared 0.56 0.56 0.56 0.56 0.51 0.46
Shares outstanding at year-end ('000s} 42,772 42,757 42,745 36.857 33,483 30,360
Ratios
Return on capital employed 12.0% 3.9% 8.8% 0.7% 7.6% 7.7%
EBITDA margin 20.5% 12.5% 18.4% 7.9% 17.3% 16.8%
Return on common shareholder's equity  20.1% 5.9% 14.9% 3.3% 1.1% 10.0%
Net debt to capitalization 1.0% 29.4% 25.3% 2.5% 1.3% 21.8%
Number of employees at year-end’ 6,900 7,400 7,000 4,100 4,000 3.800
Production
Lumber (Miviforn) 4,186 4,212 2,772 2,594 2.347 2,2
Linerboard and kraft paper (Mtonnes) 459 449 446 280 410 407
Pulp (Mtonnes) 1,104 1133 522 523 397 361
Newsprint (Mtonnes) 125 130 135 127 128 120
MDF (3/4" MMsf) 288 204 285 261 249 250
Plywood (3/8" MMsH) 728 721 249 248 235 248
LVL (Mich) 3,000 3,979 — — — —

! in 2006 and 2005 a part-time employee was counted as cne full-ime employee. In prior years the Company counted ful-time equivalent hours.
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CORPORATE

Directors

Henry H. Ketcham

Clark S. Binkley

J. Duncan Gibson
william H. Ketcham

william P. Ketcham

Harald H. Ludwig

Brian F. MacNeill

Robert L. Phillips

Janice G. Rennie

Officers
Herry H. Kotcham
Gerald J. Miller

Martt Sotin

Gary W. Townsend

D. Wayne Clogg
Rodger M. Hutchinson
William H. LeGrow
Christopher D. Mchver
Edward R. Seraphim
Zohan F. Szucs

Larry S. Hughes

INFORMATION

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Cfficer

Managing Director, International Forestry investment Advisors

{advisory services)
Investor
Managing Director, Serafin Partners LLP {private investment)

Chairman of the Board,

Henry H. Ketcham Lumber Co., Inc.(private investment)
President, Maciuan Capital Corporation (diversified private equity investments)

Chairman, Petro-Canada Inc. {energy, exploration, development,

refining and marketing)
Corpeorate Director

Corporate Director

Chaimnan, President and Chief Executive Officer
Executive Vice-President, Operations

Executive Vice-President, Finance, Corporate Development

and Chief Financial Officer

President, Sold Wood Products
Vice-President, Woodlands
Vice-President, Corporate Controller
Vice-President, Transportation and Energy
Vice-President, Lumber Sales
Vice-President, Pulp and Paper
Vice-President, Panelboard

Secretary; Partner, Lang Michener LLP (lawyers)



Sharehoider Infarmation
Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting

of the sharehoiders of the
Company will be held on April 25,
2007 at 11:00 am. at Quesnsi,

British Columbia.

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers ELP

Vancouver, British Columbia

tegal Counsel
Lang Michenear LLP

Vancouver, British Columbia

Transfer Agent

CIBC Mellon Trust Cormpany
Vancouver, Calgary, Regina,
Winnipeg, Toronto, Montreal and
Halifax

Filings

www.sedar.com

Shares Listed

Toronto Stock Exchange
Symbol: WET

Number of Common Shares
Owutstanding

42,771,937

Investor Contacts

Martti Solin

Executive Vice-President,
Finance, Corporate Developrment,
and CFO

Rodger Hutchinson
Vice-President, Corporate
Controfter

Tel: (604) 895-2700

Fax: (604) 681-6061

e-mail: shareholder@westfraser.com

waawW Weg r.com

Corporate Office
858 Beatty Street, Suite 501,
Vancouver, British Columbia
V6B 1Ct Canada

Tel: {604) 895-2700

Fax: (604) 681-6061

Sales

North American Lumber
1250 Brownmiller Road
Quesnel, British Columbia
VJ 6P5 Canada

Tel: {250} 992-9254

Fax: (250) 982-3034

Export Lumber

B58 Beatty Street, Suite 201,
Vancouver, British Columbia
V6B 1C1 Canada

Tel: (604) 895-2700

Fax: (604) 681-6061

Southern Yellow Pine Lumber
41 Thomas Road, Suite 2

West Monroe, Louisiana

71292 USA

Tel: (318) 340-6016

Fax: (318) 340-6053

Laminated Veneer Lumber
100A 9705 Horton Road SW
Calgary, Alberta

T2V 2X5 Canada

Tel: (403} 2501770

Fax: (403) 250-3877

MDF

9919 65 Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta
T6E OL1 Canada
Tel: (780) 413-B900
Fax: (780) 413-8910

Plywood

1250 Brownmiller Road
CQuesnel, British Columbia
V2.4 6P5 Canada

Tel: (250) 992-9254

Fax: {250) 992-3034

Pulp & Paper

B58 Beatty Street, Suite 501,
Vancouver, British Columbia
V6B 1C1 Canada

Tetl: (604) B95-2700

Fax: (604} 681-6061

Newsprint

2900-650 W Georgia Street
Vancouver, British Columbia
V6B 4N8 Canada

Tel: (604) 681-8817

Fax: {604) 681-8861

Operations

Solid Wood

1250 Brownmiller Road
Quesned, British Columbia
V2J 6P5 Canada

Tel: (250) 992-9244

Fax: {(250) 992-9233

West Fraser, Inc.

401 Thomas Read, Suite 2
West Monroe, Lolisiana
71292 USA

TFel {(318) 340-6000

Fax: (318} 340-6064

MDF

WestPine

300 Carradice Road
Quesnel, British Columbia
V2J 5Z7 Canada

Tel: (250) 991-7100

Fax: (250) 891-7115

Ranger Board

Box 2000
Whitecourt, Alberta
T7S 1P9 Canada

Tek (780) 648-6333
Fax: (780) 648-6397

Pulp & Paper

Cariboo Pulp & Paper
P.O. Box 7500

50 North Star Road
Quesnel, British Columbia
V2.t 3J6 Canada

Tel: (250) 892-0200

Fax: {(250) 992-2164

Eurocan Pulp & Paper Co.
£.O. Box 1400.

Eurocan Way

Kitimat, British Columbia

VBC 2H1 Canada

Tel: (250) 632-6111

Fax: (250) 639-3486

Quesnel River Pulp
1000 Finning Road
Quesnel, British Columbia
V2J 6A1 Canada

Tel: (250) 992-8919

Fax: (250) 992-2612

Hinton Pulp

760 Switzer Drive
Hirtton, Alberta

T7V 1v7 Canada

Tel: (780) 865-2251
Fax: (780) 865-6666

Slave Lake Pulp
P.O. Box 1790

Slave Lake, Afberta
T0G 2A0 Canada
Tel: (780) B49-7777
Fax: (780) 848-7725

Alberta Newsprint
Company

Postal Bag 9000
Whitecourt, Alberta
T7S 1P2 Canada

Tel: (780) 778-7000
Fax: (780) 778-7070
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GLOSSARY OF

AAC Annual Allowable Cut
The volume of timber that may be
harvested annually from a specific

timber tenure.

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand
A measurement of the oxygen
consumption of organic material in
pulp mill effliuent, which gives an
indication of its effect on the waters

the effiuent is discharged into.

BCTMP Bleached

Chemithermomechanical Pulp
Bumer A wood waste incinerator.

Dimension Lumber
Standard commedity lumber ranging

in sizes from 1x3's to 2x12's, in various

lengths.

EBITDA Refers to operating eamings
plus amortizaton of property, plant,
equipment and timber plus

restructuring charge.

Environmental Audit

A systematic examination of industrial
opearations used to measure
compliance with regulations, policy
and good industrial practice.

FMA Forest Management
Agreement An FMA is granted by the
Alberta government and entites the
holder to establish, grow and harvest
timber oh specified lands.

Farest Management Unit

An area of forest land designated by the
Minister of Environmental Pratection of
Aberta as a management unt.

Greenhouse Gases A gas that
absorbs and re-emits infrared

radiation, wanming the earth’s surface.

Green tons A unit of measure for wood
chips representing one undried ton.

INDUSTRY TERMS

VL Laminated Veneer Lumber
Large sheets of veneer bonded
together with resin, then cut to lumber

equivalent sizes.

m3 A sold cubic metre, a unit of
measure for timber, egual to

approximately 35 cubic feel.

Mef One thousand cubic feet. A unit of

measure for laminated veneer lumber.

MDF Medium Density Fibreboard
A composite product made from

wood fibre.

MiIR Medical Incident Rate

A benchmark for injury prevention
performance in an industrial setting. In
general, comelates the number of
employees injured as a result of work-
related duties with the overall number
of hours worked on site.

MFBM One thousand board feet
{equivalent 10 one thousand square feet
of lumber, one inch thick). MMFBM

means one miion board feet,

MSF A unit of measure for MDF and
phywood equal to one thousand
square feet on a 3/4 inch basis for
MDF and on a 3/8 inch basis for
pywood. MMsf means ona million

square feet.

Net Debt to Capitalization Net debt
(total debt less cash and short-term
investrents) divided by net debt plus
sharehciders equity.

NBSK Northermn Bleached
Softwood Kraft Pulp

oOT Oven Dried Tonne A unit of
measure for wood chips representing

one oven dried metric tonne.

Returm on Capital Employed
Earmings before after-tax financing
expense dvided by average assets
less average current non-interest

bearing liabilities,

Retum on Common Shareholders'
Equity Eamings available to common
shareholders divided by average
common share capral plus average

retained eamings.

SPF Lumber produced from spruce/

pmne/balsam fir species.

Sustained Yield The yield that a
forest can produce n perpetuty at a
given intensity of managerment
without impairment of the land's
productivity, with the intent that there
will be a balance between timber
growth and harvesting on a

sustainable basis.

SYP Lumber produced from southern
yellow pine species.

TFL Tree Farm License Cranted by
the Ministry of Forests in Brtish
Columbia to a licensee who
undertakes to manage an area of
forest land to vield an annual harvest
on a sustained yield basis.

TSA Timber Supply Area Forest land
designated by the Ministry of Forests
of British Columbia and allocated an
AAC from which non-area based
tmber tenures are granted.

Tonne A unit of weight in the metric
system equal to one thousand
kilograrns or approximately 2,204
Pounds. Mtonne means one

thousand tonnes.

TSS Total Suspended Solids

The total of all settable and non-
settable solids in a sample of
wastewater, measured in miligrams

per kitre by weight.

Wood Residuals Wood byproducts
generated in sawmills that cannct be
used for pdlp, including sawdust and
fine wood.
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